
City Council 8.8.2023     18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

Mayor Todd Kana    Don Doering, City Administrator 
Daniel Miller, Position 1  Leonard Schneider, City Attorney 
Matthew Dantzer, Position 2          Kyle Montgomery, Police Chief 
Richard Carby, Mayor Pro Tem, Position 3  Beverly Standley, Finance/HR Administrator 
Brenda Hoppe, Position 4       Tim Robertson, City Engineer  
Jack L Huitt Jr., Position 5             Mike Kurzy, Baxter & Woodman 

  Christian Gable, Interim City Secretary 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 
OF THE MAGNOLIA CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 – 6:00 PM 
Sewall Smith Council Chambers 

18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
a. INVOCATION
b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
c. ROLL CALL AND CERTIFICATION OF A QUORUM

2. CITIZEN COMMENTS, REQUESTS OR PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
(This agenda item provides an opportunity for citizens to address the City Council on any matter not on the agenda).
Comments shall be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Comments by the governing body shall be limited to:
a. Statements of specific factual information given in response to an inquiry;
b. A recitation of existing policy in response to an inquiry;
c. A proposal to place the subject on a future agenda.

3. OPEN PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE EXTENSION OF A MORATORIUM ON THE 
ACCEPTANCE, AUTHORIZATION, AND APPROVALS NECESSARY FOR THE 

SUBDIVISION, SITE PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT, PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT, OR 
CONSTRUCTION IN THE CITY LIMITS AND EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION OF THE 

CITY OF MAGNOLIA, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS,  
UNDER CHAPTER 212, TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE. 

On Thursday, December 16, 2022, a temporary moratorium was put in effect on the acceptance, 
authorization, and approvals necessary for the subdivision, site planning, property development, including 
residential and commercial property development or construction in the City limits and Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction for new projects. A continuing Moratorium was imposed by the adoption of Ordinance No. O-
2022-031 on December 21, 2022 with an expiration date of April 20, 2023.   

Thereafter, on April 11, 2023, the City adopted Ordinance No. O-2023-003, with an effective date of April 
20,2023 extending the moratorium an additional 120 days. The Current Moratorium is set to expire on or 
about August 18, 2023 unless it is extended before that date by Ordinance adopted by City Council.   



City Council 8.8.2023                 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

City residents and affected parties are encouraged to provide input on whether the Current Moratorium 
should be extended an additional 120 days. The Public hearing to extend the Current Moratorium and City 
Council Meeting will be held on the following date and time: 
  
Hearing: City Council, Tuesday, August 8, 2023 at 6:00p.m.  
  
The public hearing will be conducted in the Sewell Smith Council Chambers, located at 18111 Buddy Riley 
Blvd, Magnolia, Texas for all persons interested in the Current Moratorium and the extension of the Current 
Moratorium.  At such time and place, all such persons shall have the right to appear and be heard.  All 
persons interested in the moratorium and matters in relation thereto shall take notice of the date and time 
of said hearing. 
  
The City conducted an analysis to determine the adequacy of the City’s current regional water facilities 
and the need beyond the estimated capacity that is expected to result from new property development. 
The City has been provided certain findings related to the inadequacy of the existing water facilities to 
prevent a shortage of essential public facilities. The Moratorium is necessary to maintain the status quo 
and suspend further development during a period while the City actively took steps to alleviate the 
inadequacy of the existing water facilities to prevent a shortage of essential public facilities. The public 
hearing is to receive public input on whether the Current Moratorium should be extended.  
 

4. CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING  
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
(This portion of the agenda consists of items considered routine and will be enacted by one motion unless separate 
discussion is requested by a member of the City Council or a citizen. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed 
from the consent agenda and will be considered separately.) 
 
a. CONSIDERATION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Consideration and possible action to approve the minutes of the City Council Meeting 
held July 11, 2023. 
 

b. CONSIDERATION – APPROVAL OF PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 
– 2ND QUARTER ENDING JUNE 2023 
 

c. CONSIDERATION – ACCEPT EXCESS COLLECTIONS FOR 2022 DEBT SERVICE 
AND CERTIFICATION FOR DEBT SERVICE COLLECTION RATE FOR 2023/2024 

 
d. CONSIDERATION – APPROVAL OF INVESTMENT POLICY 

 
 

6. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. O-2023-
011 EXTENDING THE MORATORIUM ENACTED BY ORDINANCE O-2022-031  
(Mayor Todd Kana) 
 
 

7. BUDGET CONSIDERATION – TAX RATE (Mayor Todd Kana) 
Consideration and possible action if proposed tax rate exceeds the Voter approval rate or 
the No New Revenue rate (whichever is lower), take record vote to place proposed tax 
rate/increase on future agenda and set public hearing for August 22, 2023 at 6:00 pm. 
 



City Council 8.8.2023     18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

8. CONSIDERATION – APPROVAL OF 2022-2023 BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS
(Mayor Todd Kana)

9. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ALCOHOL
CONSUMPTION AT UNITY PARK FOR A BIRTHDAY PARTY ON AUGUST 19
(Mayor Todd Kana)

10. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ALCOHOL SALE AND
CONSUMPTION AT UNITY PARK FOR PATRIOTS OF TEXAS FESTIVAL FROM
SEPTEMBER 22nd TO 23rd (Mayor Todd Kana)

11. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ALCOHOL SALE AND
CONSUMPTION ALONG THE MAGNOLIA STROLL FOR STROLL THROUGH THE
RENAISSANCE EVENT ON SEPTEMBER 30 (Mayor Todd Kana)

12. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ALCOHOL SALE AND
CONSUMPTION AT UNITY PARK FOR MAGNOLIA CHRISTMAS IN THE PARK
DECEMBER 16 (Mayor Todd Kana)

13. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT WITH MAGNOLIA PARAGON, LLC (Mayor Todd Kana)

14. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ESCONDIDO SANDRA
DEE LANE SECTION 1, PRELIMINARY PLAT, +/- 1.925 ACRES (Mayor Todd Kana)

15. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ESCONDIDO GIRASOL
STREET AND RESERVE, PRELIMINARY PLAT, +/- 13.384 ACRES (Mayor Todd Kana)

16. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE ESCONDIDO SECTION 5,
FINAL PLAT, +/- 29.567 ACRES (Mayor Todd Kana)

17. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION
The City Council of the City of Magnolia, Texas, reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any
time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below as authorized by Title 5,
Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. §551.071(Consultation with Attorney), §551.072
(Deliberations about Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), §551.074
(Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), §551.086 (Deliberations about
competitive matters), and §551.087 (Deliberation about Economic Development Matters.)

The City Council may enter into executive session under Texas Government Code Section
551.071 to receive legal advice on MISD v City of Magnolia, Et Al.



City Council 8.8.2023     18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

The City Council may enter into executive session under Texas Government Code Section 
551.071 to receive legal advice on future water and sanitary sewer connection distribution. 

18. RECONVENE into regular session and consider and/or take action on item(s) discussed 
in executive session.

19.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE
UTILITY/INFRASTRUCTURE CONVEYANCE WITH SHADYSIDE LAND COMPANY, 
LLC (Mayor Todd Kana)

20.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE PETITION REQUESTING 
CONSENT TO MUD 116’S APPLICATION FOR ROAD POWER AUTHORITY
(Mayor Todd Kana)

21.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AUTHORIZE WORK ORDER 23-005 
FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE GROUND STORAGE 
TANK AND HYDROPNEUMATIC TANK ADDITION AT KELLY ROAD WATER PLANT 
FOR A TOTAL COST OF $65,418 (Mayor Todd Kana)

22.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AUTHORIZE WORK ORDER 23-004 
FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR WATER PLANT NO. 3 
PHASE II FOR A COST OF $88,154. (Mayor Todd Kana)

23.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AUTHORIZE BAXTER & WOODMAN 
WORK ORDER 22-010 AMENDMENT NO. 1 FOR AN INCREASE OF $25,500 FOR A 
NEW TOTAL COST OF $139,600. (Mayor Todd Kana)

24.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AUTHORIZE BAXTER & WOODMAN 
WORK ORDER 22-006 AMENDMENT NO. 2 FOR AN INCREASE OF $36,847 FOR A 
NEW TOTAL COST OF $77,347. (Mayor Todd Kana)

25.  ADMINISTRATION - DEPARTMENT REPORTS
ACTIVITIES/ UPDATES/ ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST
a. POLICE DEPARTMENT (Chief of Police, Kyle Montgomery)
b. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT (City Administrator, Don Doering)
c. ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT (City Administrator, Don Doering)

26. ADJOURN



City Council 8.8.2023                 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

If, during the course of the meeting and discussion of any items covered by this notice, City Council determines that a 
Closed or Executive Session of the Council is required, then such closed meeting will be held as authorized by Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551, Section 551.071 – consultation with counsel on legal matters; Section 551.072 – 
deliberation regarding purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property; Section 551.073 – deliberation regarding a 
prospective gift; Section 551.074 – personnel matters regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; Section 551.076 – implementation of 
security personnel or devices; Section 551.086 – deliberation regarding competitive matters of a public power utility ; 
Section 551.087 – deliberation regarding economic development negotiation; and/or other matters as authorized under 
Texas Government Code. If a Closed or Executive Session is held in accordance with the Texas Government Code as 
set out above, the City Council will reconvene in Open Session in order to take action, if necessary, on the items 
addressed during Executive Session. 
 
Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to 
contact the City Secretary’s office at (281-305-0550), two working days prior to the meeting for appropriate 
arrangements. 

 
CERTIFICATE 

 
I certify that a copy of the Notice of Meeting was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website, www.cityofmagnolia.com, in compliance with Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code.  
 
 
 
DATE _________________________  ________________________________ 
TIME__________________________  Christian Gable, Interim City Secretary 
TAKEN DOWN__________________ 



Hearst Newspapers, LLC 

Order Confirmation

Customer Fax

Ad Order Number

Sales Rep.

Order Taker

Order Source

Customer

Customer Address

Payor Customer

Customer Account

Customer Phone

Payor Account Ordered By

Customer EMail

Special Pricing

PO Number

Tear Sheets

Invoice Text

Proofs Affidavits

Net Amount

Blind Box

Tax Amount

Promo Type

Ad Order Notes

Total Amount

Materials

Payment Method Payment Amount Amount Due

Payor Address

Payor Phone

0034286474
CITY OF MAGNOLIA

CITY OF MAGNOLIA

0630-HOU 20017370 20017370 Christian Gable

jvega 18111 BUDDY RILEY BLVD

MAGNOLIA TX 773545864  USA

18111 BUDDY RILEY BLVD

MAGNOLIA TX 773545864 USA

2813562266 2813562266

Rep

 1  0  1  

NOPH EXTENSION OF A MORATORIUM

$2,030.97 $0.00 $2,030.97 Credit Card Pymt $0.00 $2,030.97 2,030.97

Gross Amount



Ad Attributes Ad Released Pick UpExternal Ad Number

Ad Number Ad Type Production Method Production Notes

0034286474-01 Legal 10c AdBooker

No

Ad Size

4 X 37 li

Color

First Run Date Last Run DatePositionPlacementProduct 

Legals Legal NoticesHOU Chronicle Friday, July 21, 2023 Friday, July 21, 2023

Legals Legal NoticesHOU Online Friday, July 21, 2023 Saturday, August 19, 2023



City Council 7.11.2023                 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

Mayor Todd Kana                            Don Doering, City Administrator 
Daniel Miller, Position 1                  Leonard Schneider, City Attorney 
Matthew Dantzer, Position 2                                   Kyle Montgomery, Police Chief 
Richard Carby, Mayor Pro Tem, Position 3                                          Beverly Standley, Finance/HR Administrator 
Brenda Hoppe, Position 4                      Tim Robertson, City Engineer  
Jack L Huitt Jr., Position 5                              Mike Kurzy, Baxter & Woodman 
            Christian Gable, Interim City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC MEETING 
OF THE MAGNOLIA CITY COUNCIL 

JULY 11, 2023 
A meeting of the City Council was held on this date, July 11, 2023, beginning at 5:34pm in the 

Sewall Smith Council Chambers 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354. 
WORKSHOP SESSION AGENDA 

 
1. CALL WORKSHOP SESSION TO ORDER 

Mayor Kana called the workshop session to order at 5:34 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 
Mayor Kana called the roll and certified a quorum was present with the following Council 
members in attendance: Todd Kana, Daniel Miller, Matthew Dantzer, Jack Huitt. 
Absent: Richard Carby, Brenda Hoppe 
 

3. WORKSHOP SESSION 
a. Budget discussion 

City Administrator Don Doering and Finance/HR Administrator Beverly Standley led the 
workshop and budget discussion. 

 
4. ADJOURN WORKSHOP SESSION 

Mayor Kana adjourned the Workshop Session at 5:50 pm. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

5. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Mayor Kana convened the regular meeting at 6:00 pm. 
 

a. INVOCATION 
Attendee Chaplain James Russell delivered the invocation. 
 

b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Boy Scouts Cash and Collin from Troup 623 led the Pledge of Allegiance to the USA and 
Texas flags. 
 

c. ROLL CALL AND CERTIFICATION OF A QUORUM 
Mayor Kana called the roll and certified a quorum was present with the following Council 
members in attendance: Todd Kana, Daniel Miller, Matthew Dantzer, Brenda Hoppe and Jack 
L Huitt Jr. 
 



City Council 7.11.2023                 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

Absent: Richard Carby 
 
Staff present: City Administrator Don Doering, City Attorney Leonard Schneider, 

City Engineer Tim Robertson, Finance/HR Administrator Beverly Standley,  
Economic Development Director Rachel Steele, Police Chief Kyle Montgomery, 
Interim City Secretary Christian Gable. 

 
6. OPEN PUBLIC HEARING 

Mayor Kana opened the public hearing at 6:04 pm and read the Notice of Public Hearing. 
There were no comments from the public. 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
On July 11, 2023 at 6:00 pm., Magnolia City Council will hold a public hearing in the Council Chambers 

of Magnolia City Hall, 18111 Buddy Riley, Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354, giving all interested persons the 
right to appear and be heard to discuss a rezoning to the City of Magnolia Official Zoning Map for 60.6 
acres of land in the Hampton Tillons Survey, Abstract 556, Montgomery County, Texas, and being a 
portion of the residue of the 100-acre tract described in the deed from Eddie E. Jones, et al., to E. J. 

Damuth recorded under Volume 326, Page 238 of the Official Public Records of Real Property of 
Montgomery County, Texas, from Auto-Urban Commercial with Mixed Residential to Auto-Urban 

Commercial with Semi-Urban Residential. 
  

7. CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING AND CONVENE REGULAR MEETING 
Mayor Kana closed the public hearing and convened the regular meeting at 6:04 pm. 

 
 

8. CITIZEN COMMENTS, REQUESTS OR PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
(This agenda item provides an opportunity for citizens to address the City Council on any matter not on the agenda). 
Comments shall be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Comments by the governing body shall be limited to: 
a. Statements of specific factual information given in response to an inquiry; 
b. A recitation of existing policy in response to an inquiry; 
c. A proposal to place the subject on a future agenda. 

 
Audrey Amirian, Mill Creek resident, spoke in request of an estimated well completion date, 
concern of the quality of water provided to residents, concern that she did not receive an 
individually mailed Consumer Confidence Report or notifications of important utility events that 
she signed up for, and in request of expediting increased water pressure.  

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA 

(This portion of the agenda consists of items considered routine and will be enacted by one motion unless separate 
discussion is requested by a member of the City Council or a citizen. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed 
from the consent agenda and will be considered separately.) 
 
a. CONSIDERATION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Consideration and possible action to approve the minutes of the City Council Meeting 
held June 13, 2023. 

b. CONSIDERATION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Consideration and possible action to approve the minutes of the Emergency City 
Council Meeting held June 29, 2023. 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion to approve Consent Agenda made by Councilmember Dantzer  

and seconded by Councilmember Huitt, the Councilmembers voted, and the 
motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 

 
10. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. O-2023-

008 TO CHANGE THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION FOR 60.6 ACRES OF MAGNOLIA 



City Council 7.11.2023                 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

VILLAGE FROM AUTO-URBAN COMMERCIAL WITH MIXED RESIDENTIAL TO 
AUTO-URBAN COMMERCIAL WITH SEMI-URBAN RESIDENTIAL (Mayor Todd Kana) 
 

MOTION: Upon a motion to approve made by Councilmember Dantzer and  
seconded by Councilmember Miller, the Councilmembers voted, and the motion 
carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

 
11. AUDIT PRESENTATION BY BROOKSWATSON CO. (Mayor Todd Kana) 

Louis Breedlove, Senior Audit Manager for BrooksWatson Co., gave a presentation 
explaining the audit process and showing the results of the audit for the 2022 Fiscal Year. 

 
12. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION R-2023-003 

4B PROJECT FOR THE ISSUANCE OF AN RFQ AND PLANNING STUDY TO 
UPDATE THE CITY OF MAGNOLIA PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN 
(Mayor Todd Kana) 
Economic Development Director Rachel Steele presented this item for action. 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion to approve made by Councilmember Dantzer and seconded by  

Councilmember Huitt, the Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried 
unanimously, 4-0.  

 
 

13. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO FILL THE EXPIRED BOARD TERM 
FOR POSITION 1 OF THE MAGNOLIA 4A ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION (Mayor Todd Kana)  
Economic Development Director Rachel Steele clarified that the 6-year term has expired 
for Robert Franklin and needs to be renewed. 
 

MOTION: Upon a motion to have Robert Franklin fill the expired Board term for  
Position 1 of the Magnolia 4A Economic Development Corporation made by 
Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by Councilmember Huitt, the 
Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 

 
 

14. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO FILL THE UNEXPIRED BOARD 
TERM FOR POSITION 2 OF THE MAGNOLIA 4A ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION (Mayor Todd Kana) 
Economic Development Director Rachel Steele clarified that filling the unexpired terms 
are for required administrative documentation. 
 

MOTION: Upon a motion to have Anne Sundquist fill the unexpired Board term for  
Position 2 of the Magnolia 4A Economic Development Corporation made by 
Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by Councilmember Dantzer, the 
Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 

 
15. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO FILL THE UNEXPIRED BOARD 

TERM FOR POSITION 3 OF THE MAGNOLIA 4A ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION (Mayor Todd Kana) 



City Council 7.11.2023                 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion to have Basil Tate fill the unexpired Board term for  

Position 3 of the Magnolia 4A Economic Development Corporation made by 
Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by Councilmember Dantzer, the 
Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 

 
 

16. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE MEMBERSHIP IN THE 
TEXAS SMARTBUY PROGRAM (Mayor Todd Kana) 
Finance Administrator Beverly Standley and Police Chief Kyle Montgomery explained 
that the Evidence Department within the Magnolia Police Department is in need of blood 
kits acceptable by DPS and this is the only program available for purchasing. 
 

MOTION: Upon a motion to approve made by Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by  
Councilmember Huitt, the Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried 
unanimously, 4-0. 

 
17. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE AMENDMENT TO THE 

2023-2024 BUDGET AND TAX RATE CALENDAR (Mayor Todd Kana) 
Finance Administrator Beverly Standley explained that because the Council meeting 
times were changed from 7:00pm to 6:00pm, the report and calendar need updated. 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion to approve made by Councilmember Dantzer and seconded by  

Councilmember Huitt, the Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried 
unanimously, 4-0. 
 

18. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. O-2023-
009 FOR A CITY COUNCIL AND MAYOR PER MEETING STIPEND (Mayor Todd Kana) 
Mayor Kana elaborated that you will need to be elected to a position on City Council after 
the Ordinance is put into effect in order to begin receiving a per meeting stipend. 
City Attorney Leonard Schneider mentioned that the Ordinance is for a proposed salary 
not dependent on meeting attendance. 
 

MOTION: Upon a motion to adopt Ordinance No. O-2023-009 with the amendment of  
“salary” replacing “stipend” made by Councilmember Dantzer and seconded by 
Councilmember Miller, the Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried, 3-1. 

 
19. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. O-2023-

010 FOR A SPEED ZONE CHANGE ALONG FM 1774 (Mayor Todd Kana) 
 

MOTION: Upon a motion to adopt Ordinance No. O-2023-010 made by Councilmember  
Dantzer and seconded by Councilmember Huitt, the Councilmembers voted, and 
the motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
 

20. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE INSTALLATION OF A 
NEW STREET LIGHT AT FM 1774 AND HARLINGEN DRIVE (Richard Carby) 
Mayor Kana clarified that the request is for a street light, not a traffic light. 
 



City Council 7.11.2023                 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

MOTION: Upon a motion to approve made by Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by 
 Councilmember Miller, the Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried  

unanimously, 4-0.  
 

21. PRESENTATION BY MAGNOLIA PARAGON, LLC (Mayor Todd Kana) 
Kevin Mokos, Magnolia Paragon representative, delivered a presentation regarding a 
proposed mixed-use development adjacent to the Mill Creek neighborhood according to 
the slideshow provided in the meeting packet. 
Christina Miller with ABHR was present to answer legal questions and clarify points within 
the agreement. 
City Council voiced concern in the proposed lot sizes and the name of the development, 
Magnolia Crossing, being that it already exists in Magnolia. 

 
22. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT FOR MAGNOLIA PARAGON, LLC (Mayor Todd Kana) 
City Council requested that this agreement go to the Planning & Zoning Commission for 
recommendation. 
No action was taken.  

 
23. CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Magnolia, Texas, reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any 
time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below as authorized by Title 5, 
Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. §551.071(Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 
(Deliberations about Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), §551.074 
(Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), §551.086 (Deliberations about 
competitive matters), and §551.087 (Deliberation about Economic Development Matters.) 

 
The City Council may enter into executive session under Texas Government Code Section 
551.071 to receive legal advice on notice of Violation and Consent Order by Lone Star 
Groundwater Conservation District. 
 
The City Council may enter into executive session under Texas Government Code Section 
551.071 to receive legal advice on MISD v City of Magnolia, Et Al.  

 
 Mayor Kana convened into Closed Executive Session at 7:02 pm. 
 

24.  RECONVENE into regular session and consider and/or take action on item(s) discussed 
in executive session. 

 
Mayor Kana adjourned Closed Executive Session and reconvened the open meeting at 
7:35 pm. 
 

MOTION: Upon a motion to approve Consent Order by Lone Star Groundwater  
Conservation District made by Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by 
Councilmember Huitt, the Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried 
unanimously, 4-0. 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion to approve City’s agreement to mediator’s proposal on MISD v  

City of Magnolia made by Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by Councilmember 
Huitt, the Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 

 



City Council 7.11.2023                 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

25. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO SIGN LETTER OF INTENT ON 
CONSTRUCTION OF INFRASTRUCTURE TO 35-ACRE TRACT WITH PARKSIDE 
1488, LLC AND CUNNINGHAM INTERESTS II, LTD (Mayor Todd Kana) 
City Attorney Leonard Schneider summarized the details provided in the letter. Christina 
Miller, MUD 108 representative, explained that this property is contemplated to be a 
hospital and the proposal involves annexation. 
City Council spoke in interest to revise verbiage in paragraph 1 regarding water details 
and language found in the development agreement with Magnolia Paragon. 
 

MOTION: Upon a motion to sign Letter of Intent with amendments to paragraph 1 made  
by Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by Councilmember Huitt, the 
Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 

 
26. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO SIGN LETTER OF INTENT ON 

CONSTRUCTION OF INFRASTRUCTURE TO 14.246-ACRE TRACT WITH PARKSIDE 
1774, LLC (Mayor Todd Kana) 
Christina Miller, MUD 108 representative, clarified that this tract is located in MUD 174 
found in the City’s ETJ. 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion to sign Letter of Intent with amendments to paragraph 1 made  

by Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by Councilmember Huitt, the 
Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

27. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AUTHORIZE BAXTER & WOODMAN, 
INC. WORK ORDER NO. 23-004 FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
OF WATER PLANT NO. 3 PHASE II IN AN AMOUNT NOT-TO-EXCEED $255,241.00 
(Mayor Todd Kana) 
City Engineer Tim Robertson recommended taking no action on this item. 
No action was taken. 
 

28. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AWARD CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT FOR GROUND STORAGE TANK AND HYDROPNEUMATIC TANK 
ADDITION AT KELLY ROAD WATER PLANT (Mayor Todd Kana) 
City Engineer Tim Robertson stated that he and Baxter & Woodman recommend 
awarding the contract to ALLCO. 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion to award Construction Contract for Ground Storage Tank and  

Hydropneumatic Tank Addition at Kelly Road Water Plant to ALLCO made by 
Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by Councilmember Huitt, the 
Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 

 
29. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO AUTHORIZE WATER WELL NO. 8 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 IN THE AMOUNT OF $256,605.00 FOR A TOTAL 
INCREASED CONTRACT COST OF $3,156,105.00 WITH WEISINGER, INC  
(Mayor Todd Kana) 
City Engineer Tim Robertson summarized the purpose of the Change Order as 
elaborated in the meeting packet. 
 



City Council 7.11.2023                 18111 Buddy Riley Blvd., Magnolia, Texas 77354 

MOTION: Upon a motion to approve made by Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by  
Councilmember Huitt, the Councilmembers voted, and the motion carried 
unanimously, 4-0. 

 
30. ADMINISTRATION - DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

        ACTIVITIES/ UPDATES/ ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
a. POLICE DEPARTMENT (Chief of Police, Kyle Montgomery) 

Police Chief Kyle Montgomery was present to answer any questions regarding his report 
found in the meeting packet. He stated there were 2 burglaries of uninhabited buildings 
last month and clarified rumors regarding a “shooting” that turned out to be classified as 
deadly conduct by the suspect shooting a deadly weapon up into the air. 

b. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT (City Administrator, Don Doering) 
City Engineer Tim Robertson stated that a well is currently down and being repaired but 
pressure is being maintained throughout the City.  

c. ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT (City Administrator, Don Doering)   
City Administrator Don Doering introduced Suzanne, manager of GFL Environmental. He 
proceeded to summarize his report and financials found in the meeting packet.         

 
31.  ADJOURN 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion to adjourn made by Councilmember Hoppe and seconded by  
Councilmember Huitt, the Councilmembers voted, the motion carried unanimously, 4-0, 
and the meeting adjourned at 8:02 pm. 
 

     ________________________________ 
     Todd Kana, Mayor  

 
CERTIFICATION 

I certify that this is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the City Council meeting held on 
July 11, 2023. 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Christian Gable, Interim City Secretary 

 
 
 







































































  

City of Magnolia Ordinance No. O-2023-011 Temporary Moratorium 
Page 1 of 7 

5 

 

 

CITY OF MAGNOLIA, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE 2023-011 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MAGNOLIA, TEXAS, (“CITY”) EXTENDING 
A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON THE ACCEPTANCE, AUTHORIZATION, 
AND APPROVALS NECESSARY FOR THE SUBDIVISION, SITE PLANNING, 
DEVELOPMENT, AND CONSTRUCTION IN THE CITY LIMITS AND 
EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION, PROVIDING FOR FINDINGS OF FACT, 
DEFINITIONS, APPLICABILITY, PURPOSE, ENACTMENT, DURATION, 
EXTENSION, EXCEPTIONS AND EXEMPTIONS, DETERMINATION AND 
APPEALS, REPEALER, SEVERABILITY, ENFORCEMENT, EFFECTIVE DATE, 
AND PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Magnolia (“City Council”), Texas  as a duly-elected 

legislative body, finds that it is facing significant historic commercial and 
residential growth; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City and its citizens to 

extend the moratorium enacted by Ordinance O-2022-031 in order to temporarily 
suspend the acceptance, authorization, and approvals necessary for the subdivision, 
site planning, development, zoning, and construction on real property in the City 
limits and extraterritorial jurisdiction; and 

 
WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code Section 51.001 provides the City general authority 

to adopt an Ordinance or police regulations that is for the good government, peace 
or order of the City and is necessary or proper for carrying out a power granted by 
law to the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Texas Local Government Code, including Chapter 212 grants the City certain 

regulation authority concerning construction, land use, nuisances, structures and 
development-related activities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City seeks to ensure that impending and future development is conducted in a 

fiscally-sustainable and environmentally responsible manner; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Limits and Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City are comprised of a 

combination of topographical and ecological features that create significant 
development challenges; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City conducted an updated analysis to determine the adequacy of the City’s 

current regional water facilities and the need beyond the estimated capacity that is 
expected to result from new property development; and 

 
WHEREAS, upon review of the analysis by the City’s Water Engineer and City Administrator, 

the City Council has made updated  findings contained herein as  Attachment “A” 
related to the inadequacy of existing essential public facilities in accordance with 
Sections 212.135 and 212.136 of the Texas Local Government Code; and 



  

City of Magnolia Ordinance No. O-2023-011 Temporary Moratorium 
Page 2 of 7 

5 

 

 

WHEREAS, in light of the updated findings, the City Council finds that certain essential public and 
private infrastructure, being water facilities throughout the City Limits and ETJ, are 
inadequate and insufficient to adequately serve new development; and 

 
WHEREAS, relying on the updated analysis provided by the City’s Water Engineer and City 

Staff, the outstanding permits issued by the City prior to this moratorium, and the 
City’s impact fee analysis, the City Council makes the following findings: 

 
1. Taking into account all water that has been committed by contract, the City’s 

water facilities are at capacity; and 
2. Based on the contractual commitments that will utilize all additional 

capacity of the City’s water plants, there is currently no additional capacity 
available to commit to development of lots; and 

3. The City has made reasonable progress to provide additional capacity and 
is in the process of building Wells Numbers 7 and 8, and an additional well 
in conjunction with a Developer. However, Well Number 7 will not operate 
a full capacity until late Summer or Early Fall of 2023 and Well Number 8 
will not be completed until late Winter 2023 or January of 2024. The City 
believes that it will need at least two wells operating before it can reasonably 
determine if its capacity will meet current and contracted needs. 

4. This extension of the moratorium is limited to 120 days unless the City 
determines there is a need for continuing the moratorium, namely not having 
sufficient capacity to meet current and contracted needs for water.  

5. This moratorium should be reasonably limited to property located in the City 
limits and the ETJ. 
 

WHEREAS, the City continues to take actions to increase the water capacity of the City of 
Magnolia, but allowing for additional new development with new water service 
connections will only exacerbate the situation; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City Council finds that a temporary moratorium on the acceptance, 

authorization, and approvals necessary for the subdivision, site planning, 
development, and construction in the City Limits and ETJ will prevent the situation 
from becoming worse, and will allow the City time to address the measures needed 
to remedy the shortage of essential public facilities, water capacity, and to secure 
funds to pay for such remedial measures; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City Council has authorized the purchase of additional water plant sites and is 

planning to design, permit, and build additional water wells in 2024 and 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, additional evaluation of the existing infrastructure and development are needed to 

allow for growth and development within the City Limits and ETJ while protecting 
the health, safety, environment, quality of life, and general welfare of its residents; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in recognition of the importance of development permits and/or approvals to the 

community, the City desires to implement this moratorium for a stated and fixed 



  

City of Magnolia Ordinance No. O-2023-011 Temporary Moratorium 
Page 3 of 7 

5 

 

 

time period, and to include a waiver provision in accordance with Local 
Government Code Chapter 212, Subchapter E; and 

 
WHEREAS, sufficient notice and a hearing have been published and held in accordance with 

applicable statutes, laws, and regulations to extend a moratorium; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the enactment of this Ordinance is directly related to the 

immediate preservation of the public peace, health or safety. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MAGNOLIA, TEXAS THAT: 

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS OF FACT: That the City Council of the City of Magnolia does 

hereby adopt as a part of this Ordinance the several findings of fact as set out in the preamble to this 
Ordinance and finds that the several conclusions reached therein are true, correct and accurate and 
are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as legislative findings of fact as if expressly set 
forth herein. 
 

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS: As used in this Ordinance, these terms shall be defined as 
follows. Terms appearing in this Ordinance but not defined herein shall have the meanings 
provided in the City’s Code of Ordinances, or if not defined by the City then the common meanings 
in accordance with ordinary usage. 
 

A. Commercial property: means property zoned for or otherwise authorized for use 
other than single-family use, multifamily use, heavy industrial use, or use as a quarry. 
B. Essential public facilities: means water, sewer/wastewater, or storm drainage 
facilities or street improvements provided by a municipality or private utility. 

 
C. Permit: means a license, certificate, approval, registration, consent, permit, contract 
or other agreement for construction related to, or provision of, service from a water or 
wastewater utility owned, operated, or controlled by a regulatory agency, or other form of 
authorization required by law, rule, regulation, order, or ordinance that a person must 
obtain to perform an action or initiate, continue, or complete a project for which the permit 
is sought. 

 
D. Project: means an endeavor over which a regulatory agency exerts its jurisdiction 
and for which one (1) or more permits are required to initiate, continue, or complete the 
endeavor. 

 
E. Property development: means the construction, reconstruction, or other alteration 
or improvement of residential or commercial buildings or the subdivision or replatting 
of a subdivision of residential or commercial property. 

 
F. Residential property: means property zoned for or otherwise authorized for single- 
family or multi-family use. 

 
SECTION 3. APPLICABILITY: The City of Magnolia hereby enacts this Ordinance in 



  

City of Magnolia Ordinance No. O-2023-011 Temporary Moratorium 
Page 4 of 7 

5 

 

 

order to extend the temporary moratorium on the acceptance and processing of certain applications 
and issuance of particular permits and other forms of municipal authorizations related to specific 
construction and land development activities. This temporary moratorium applies to all city zoning 
district uses within the City Limits and to the ETJ. 
 

Unless a project falls within an Exception (as provided below), this temporary moratorium 
applies to all applications for property development permits.  
 

SECTION 4. PURPOSE: This temporary moratorium is being enacted to: (i) prevent a 
shortage of essential public facilities, namely water facilities that are operating at capacity, taking into 
account all water committed with permits and by contract; and (ii) for the protection of the health, safety 
and well-being of the residents, citizens and inhabitants of the City of Magnolia, Texas,  to prevent a 
shortage of essential public facilities, being water services. 

 
SECTION 5. ENACTMENT: The City of Magnolia hereby enacts this Ordinance 

implementing a temporary moratorium on the City’s acceptance, review, approval, and issuance of 
permits, authorizations, and approvals necessary for the subdivision of, site planning of, or 
construction on real property for residential and commercial property development in the City of 
Magnolia and its ETJ. 
 

SECTION 6. DURATION: The initial duration of this temporary moratorium shall be for a 
period of one hundred twenty (120) days after enactment of this Ordinance, or repeal of this 
Ordinance by the City, whichever is sooner. During said period of moratorium, the City shall cease 
accepting permits, authorizations, and approvals necessary for the subdivision of, site planning of, 
or construction on real property for residential and commercial property development in the City of 
Magnolia and its ETJ as provided under all Ordinances that may be related thereto of the City of 
Magnolia, including all amendments thereto during the period of moratorium.  

 
      SECTION 7. EXTENSION: If the City determines that the initial period is insufficient for 
the City to have two new wells operational with additional capacity to fully meets current and 
contracted requests for water service and  fully complete its study and planning, this Ordinance may 
be renewed or extended for an additional period of time, necessary to complete the study and 
implement the recommended actions to alleviate the need for the moratorium and any changes to City 
codes, policies, and processes in accordance with the time limits as provided by law upon a majority 
vote of the City Council. 
 

     SECTION 8. ADOPTIONS OF PROVISION OF CHAPTER 212:Further, the City of 
Magnolia adopts verbatim the waiver procedures required by Local Government Code, Section 
212.137 on the date the moratorium takes effect and, as applicable, the limitations on the moratorium 
as specified in the Local Government Code, Section 212.139(a) and (b).   

 
SECTION 9. EXCEPTIONS AND EXEMPTIONS 

 
A. Exceptions. Any property owner who believes that they fall within the below 

exceptions shall provide notice of the exception at time of application for any permit 
with the City-approved form. Exceptions are administratively approved or denied. 
Any exception that is denied may be appealed to the City Council. Exceptions will be 



  

City of Magnolia Ordinance No. O-2023-011 Temporary Moratorium 
Page 5 of 7 

5 

 

 

determined within the same time period as the administrative completeness check for 
each project, or within ten business days, whichever is sooner. If a Grandfathered 
Development Status Determination Request is required, then the exception can be 
applied concurrently with the Request but the time frame of the Request shall be 
controlling. 

 
1. No Impact Projects. The temporary moratorium implemented by this 

Ordinance does not apply to a project that does not: 
• Impact water capacity 

 
To make a determination of whether a project is no impact as listed, an applicant 
shall apply for an exception to the moratorium. 

 
2. Ongoing Projects.  The temporary moratorium implemented by this Ordinance 

does not apply to any projects that are currently, actively in progress for which 
valid City permits have been issued and have not expired as of December 16, 
2022, such being the fifth business day after the date on which the City published 
notice of the public hearings to consider this Ordinance. The provisions of this 
Ordinance do not apply to any completed application or plan for development for 
a permit, plat, verification, rezoning, site plan, approved wastewater plan, or new 
or revised certificate of occupancy for Property Development that were filed 
prior to December 16, 2022. New permits applied for as part of a previously 
approved project may proceed once an exception is applied for and approved as 
described herein. 

3. Grandfathered Projects. The temporary moratorium implemented by this 
Ordinance shall not apply to projects that are grandfathered under as provided by 
state law. Property owners asserting grandfathered rights under Texas Local 
Government Code Chapter 245 must submit an application claiming an exception 
to this temporary moratorium to the planning department for review in accordance 
with City policy. Grandfathered status can be approved through an approved 
Grandfathered Development Status Determination Request. New permits applied 
for as part of a previously vested project may proceed once an exception is 
applied for and approved as described herein. 

 
4. Development Agreement: Property owners with a negotiated approval granted 

by the City Council providing for construction standards, platting, water, and 
development rules pursuant to Local Government Code Chapter 212, Subchapter 
G may apply for an exception in accordance with City policy. New permits 
applied for as part of a Development Agreement project may proceed once an 
exception is applied for and approved as described herein. 

 
B. Waivers. Any property owner who does not assert rights under Texas Local 

Government Code Chapter 245, but who seeks authorization to proceed with the 
development permitting process during the time of the temporary moratorium can 
request a waiver. Property owners agreeing to construct certain water infrastructure 
at property owners’ sole expense and who do not require land use modifications 
inconsistent with the updated comprehensive planning, in accordance with Local 



  

City of Magnolia Ordinance No. O-2023-011 Temporary Moratorium 
Page 6 of 7 

5 

 

 

Government Code Chapter 212, Subchapter E may apply for waiver in accordance 
with City policy. 

 
SECTION 10. DETERMINATIONS & APPEALS 

 
A. Exceptions. The Planning Director or their designee shall make all initial 

determinations regarding the status of all projects seeking to apply for permits during 
this temporary moratorium and recognition of all Exceptions (as provided herein). 
Exceptions for projects filed within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this 
ordinance may be filed without a corresponding permit application. Any exception 
application filed within this period will be decided within ten (10) business days of 
receipt. Any exception that is denied may be appealed to City Council or the 
applicant may apply for a Waiver. An exception may be applied for by lot, project, 
plat, or all area covered by a particular permit or agreement. 

 
B. City Council. City Council shall make a final decision on waivers within 10 days of 

filing of application. 
 

C. Waivers. The decision to approve an Exemption (as provided for above) shall rest 
solely with the City Council. Any denial will stand until the moratorium is lifted 
unless the project requesting the waiver has a substantial change and reapplies for a 
waiver. 

 
SECTION 11. REPEALER: In the case of any conflict between the other provisions of 

this Ordinance and any existing Ordinance of the City, the provisions of this Ordinance will 
control. 
 

SECTION 12. SEVERABILITY: If any provision of this Ordinance or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid, that invalidity or the unenforceability will 
not affect any other provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without 
the invalid provision. 
 

SECTION 13. ENFORCEMENT: The City shall have the power to administer and 
enforce the provisions of this Ordinance as may be required by governing law. Any person 
violating any provision of this temporary moratorium is subject to suit for injunctive relief as well as 
prosecution for criminal violations, and such violation is hereby declared to be a nuisance. 
 

Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed as a waiver of the City’s right to bring a civil 
action to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance and to seek remedies as allowed by law and/or 
equity. 

 
SECTION 14. EFFECTIVE DATE: This Ordinance shall be effective upon expiration 

of the moratorium on April 20, 2023 and shall extend the moratorium for 120 days.  

 
SECTION 15. PROPER NOTICE & MEETING: It is hereby officially found and 

determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public, and that 
public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 



  

City of Magnolia Ordinance No. O-2023-011 Temporary Moratorium 
Page 7 of 7 

5 

 

 

Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. Notice and public hearings were also 
provided as required by Texas Government Code Chapter 212, Subchapter E. 

 

READ & APPROVED on  the 8th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
 
CITY OF MAGNOLIA: 
 
 
        __________________ 

Todd Kana, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________ 
Christian Gable, Interim City Secretary 



Exhibit A Ord 2023-011



























































































 

June 9, 2023 

Mr. Don Doering 

City Administrator 

City of Magnolia 

18111 Buddy Riley Boulevard 

Magnolia, Texas 77354 

Reference: Escondido Sandra Dee Lane Street Dedication Section 1 Preliminary Plat –  

Letter of No Objection 

  City of Magnolia  

Baxter & Woodman Job No. 2325523.00-001 

Dear Mr. Doering:  

We received the Preliminary Plat for the proposed Escondido Sandra Dee Lane Street Dedication 

Section 1 on June 1st, 2023. On behalf of City of Magnolia (the “City”), we have reviewed the submitted 

documents and offer no objection to the approval of this project, subject to the following comments: 

1. If any portion of this development may change at a future date, the City reserves the right to 

review and approve the proposed changes before initiating the change.  

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact the undersigned or 

Michael A. Kurzy, P.E. at (281) 350-7027.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Cristin Emshoff, MUP, ENV SP 

Community Planner 

Baxter and Woodman, Inc. 

TBPELS Registration No. F-21783 

 

XC: Ms. Christian Gable – City of Magnolia – Interim City Secretary  

Mr. Tim Robertson, PE – City of Magnolia – City Engineer 

Mr. Zachary Zarse – LJA Engineering, Inc.  

 Ms. Karleigh Brown – Baxter and Woodman, Inc. 

Mr. Tommy Cormier, Jr., PE – Baxter and Woodman, Inc. 

Mr. Mike Kurzy, PE – Baxter and Woodman, Inc.  

 

 











VICINITY MAP

NN

PRELIMINARY PLAT
ESCONDIDO

SANDRA DEE LANE
STREET DEDICATION

SECTION 1

N

LJA Engineering, Inc.
3600 W. Sam Houston Parkway S.            Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                            FRN - F-1386

GBI  PARTNERS
PHONE: 281-499-4539

4 7 2 4  V I S T A  R O A D
PASADENA, TX 77505

w w w . G B I S u r v e y . c o m

TBPELS FIRM #10130300
GBISurvey@GBISurvey.com





N



 

June 9, 2023 

Mr. Don Doering 
City Administrator 
City of Magnolia 
18111 Buddy Riley Boulevard 
Magnolia, Texas 77354 

Reference: Escondido Girasol St. and Reserve Preliminary Plat – Letter of No Objection 

  City of Magnolia  

Baxter & Woodman Job No. 2325524.00-001 

Dear Mr. Doering: 

We received the Preliminary Plat for the proposed Escondido Girasol St. and Reserve on June 1st, 

2023. On behalf of the City of Magnolia (the “City”), we have reviewed the submitted documents and 

offer no objection to the approval of this project, subject to the following comments: 

1. With the final plat submittal, please change the personnel for the Interim City Secretary to 

Christian Gable.  

2. If any portion of this development may change at a future date, the City reserves the right to 

review and approve the proposed changes before initiating the change.  

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact the undersigned or 

Michael A. Kurzy, P.E. at (281) 350-7027.   

 

Sincerely, 

 
 
 
Cristin Emshoff, MUP, ENV SP 
Community Planner 

Baxter and Woodman, Inc. 
TBPELS Registration No. F-21783 
 
XC: Ms. Christian Gable – City of Magnolia – Interim City Secretary  

Mr. Tim Robertson, PE – City of Magnolia – City Engineer 

Mr. Zachary Zarse – LJA Engineering, Inc.  

 Ms. Karleigh Brown – Baxter and Woodman, Inc. 

 Ms. Cecily Cunz – Baxter and Woodman, Inc. 

Mr. Tommy Cormier, Jr., PE – Baxter and Woodman, Inc. 

 

 











VICINITY MAP

PRELIMINARY PLAT
ESCONDIDO

GIRASOL STREET AND RESERVE

LJA Engineering, Inc.
2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                            FRN - F-1386

GBI  PARTNERS
LAND SURVEYING CONSULTANTS

TBPELS FIRM #10130300     www.GBIsurvey.com

4724 VISTA ROAD     PASADENA, TX 77505
PHONE: 281-499-4539     GBIsurvey@GBIsurvey.com







 

July 10, 2023 

Mr. Don Doering 

City Administrator 

City of Magnolia 

18111 Buddy Riley Boulevard 

Magnolia, Texas 77354 

Reference: Escondido Section 5 Final Plat  – Letter of No Objection 

  City of Magnolia  

Baxter & Woodman Job No. 221390.80-001 

Dear Mr. Doering:  

We received the final plat for the proposed Escondido Section 5 on June 28, 2023. On behalf of the 

City of Magnolia (the “City”), we have reviewed the submitted documents and offer no objection to 

the approval of this project, subject to the following comments: 

1. If any portion of this development may change at a future date, the City reserves the right to 

review and approve the proposed changes before initiating the change.  

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact the undersigned or 

Michael A. Kurzy, P.E. at (281) 350-7027.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Cristin Emshoff, MUP, ENV SP 

Community Planner 

Baxter and Woodman, Inc. 

TBPELS Registration No. F-21783 

 

XC: Ms. Christian Gable – City of Magnolia – Interim City Secretary  

Mr. Tim Robertson, PE – City of Magnolia – City Engineer 

Mr. Zachary Zarse – LJA Engineering, Inc.  

 Ms. Karleigh Brown – Baxter and Woodman, Inc. 

Mr. Tommy Cormier, Jr., PE – Baxter and Woodman, Inc. 

Mr. Mike Kurzy, PE – Baxter and Woodman, Inc.  

 

 

 



1 

Final Plat Application Form 

This form shall be submitted with each application for a final plat.

Applications must be received by the first Monday of the month to be 
considered by the Planning  and Zoning Commission in the same month. 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Applicant Property Owner (if different) 

____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Name  Name 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Street Address  Street Address 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
City, State Zip City, State Zip 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Phone  Phone 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Fax Fax 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
E-mail E-mail

Architect (if different) Engineer/Land Surveyor (if different) 

____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Name  Name 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Street Address  Street Address 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
City, State Zip City, State Zip 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Phone  Phone 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Fax Fax 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
E-mail E-mail

asantibanes
Text Box
Alexis Santibanes

asantibanes
Text Box
3600 W Sam Houston S Pkwy, Suite 600 

asantibanes
Text Box
Houston, TX 77042

asantibanes
Text Box
713-580-4179

asantibanes
Text Box
asantibanes@lja.com

asantibanes
Text Box
Magnolia Escondido, LLC

asantibanes
Text Box
6046 FM 2920, Suite 512

asantibanes
Text Box
Spring, TX 77379

asantibanes
Text Box
713-580-4179

asantibanes
Text Box
asantibanes@lja.com

asantibanes
Text Box
Ciro Ariza

asantibanes
Text Box
1904 W Grand Parkway N, Suite 100

asantibanes
Text Box
Katy, TX 77449

asantibanes
Text Box
713-913-5293

asantibanes
Text Box
cariza@lja.com

Subdivision: Escondido

Reviewer:



2 

PROPERTY PROFILE 

Legal Description ______________________________________________________________________ 

(Subdivision)  (Lot)  (Block) 

Current Zoning ________________________________ 

Present Use of Property 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Proposed Use of the Property 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Total Area of Site _____________ 

 _________________________________

asantibanes
Text Box
29.567 acres in the James Pierpont Survey, Abstract 426, Montgomery County, Texas

asantibanes
Text Box
semi-urban residential

asantibanes
Text Box
Rural

asantibanes
Text Box
Single Family Residential

asantibanes
Text Box
29.567 acres

asantibanes
Text Box
R50829

Subdivision: Escondido

Reviewer:



3 

1. Description of existing property. If the property has been previously subdivided, provided the lot(s),

block(s), and subdivision name. If the property has been subdivided, provide the metes and bounds

description:

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

2. Description of proposed property change, including lot numbers, name, etc.

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

Required Information 

The number of lots in the subdivision

The size of the parcel

The number of dwelling units proposed (provided on a separated attached description)

The number of square feet of nonresidential floor area proposed, by generalized use (provided

on a separate attached description)

Water available for fire protection

Use and ownership of abutting parcels or lots

Location and dimensions (including all curve data, the lengths of all arcs, radii, internal angles, points

of curvature, lengths and bearings of tangents) of:

Right-of-way, streets, alleys, railroads, lots, open space, parks, protected natural resources, and

buffers

Utility and access easements

Private access easements

One (1) copy of the final plat; 20 in. x 24 in. size Mylar original sealed by a state of Texas registered 

surveyor
Two (2) blue line copies of the original Mylar final plat 
One (1) copies of "letter of explanation" with plat details 
Six (6) copies in blue or black line of all originals in 11 in. x 17 in. size for City Council
All fees

One (1) Adobe Acrobat PDF of each page presented to the City for review

Owner affidavit of no conveyance of any interest and that no additional liens exist on the land within 
the plat since the date of the original title opinion (title search)

Tax certificates; City, County, and School

Final plans and specifications for all required improvements

Vicinity map

North arrow

Revision date

Legal description

Scale

Contour lines (at one-foot intervals)

Tabulations that include:

asantibanes
Text Box
29.567 acres in the James Pierpont Survey, Abstract 426, Montgomery County, Texas

asantibanes
Text Box
Escondido Section 5- 123 Lots, 5 Blocks, 5 Reserves

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

asantibanes
Text Box
X

Subdivision: Escondido

Reviewer:



VICINITY MAP

NN

FINAL PLAT
ESCONDIDO

SECTION 5

N

LJA Engineering, Inc.
3600 W. Sam Houston Parkway S.            Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                            FRN - F-1386

GBI  PARTNERS
LAND SURVEYING CONSULTANTS

TBPELS FIRM #10130300     www.GBIsurvey.com

4724 VISTA ROAD     PASADENA, TX 77505
PHONE: 281-499-4539     GBIsurvey@GBIsurvey.com





N







PETITION REQUESTING CONSENT OF 
THE CITY OF MAGNOLIA 

TO MONTGOMERY COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 116' s 
APPLICATION FOR ROAD POWER AUTHORITY 

ST ATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY § 

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAGNOLIA, 
TEXAS: 

The Board of Directors of Montgomery County Municipal Utility District No. 116 
(hereinafter, the "District"), pursuant to the provisions of Section 54.234, Texas Water 
Code, as amended, hereby respectfully petitions the City of Magnolia, Texas (the "City"), 
requesting the City's consent to the District's acquisition of road powers, and would show 
the following: 

ARTICLE I 

The District was duly created by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
(the "TCEQ") on February 21, 2007, and is authorized to operate under Chapter 54, Texas 
Water Code, upon a Petition filed by the owners of land within the boundaries of the 
District. At the time of the District's creation, the entirety of the District was located in 
unincorporated Montgomery County. As a result, the City's consent was not required 
for the District's creation. Since its creation, the City's extraterritorial jurisdiction has 
expanded to overlay the entirety of the District. 

ARTICLE II 

Section 54.234, Texas Water Code, authorizes a district to acquire the authority to 
design, acquire, construct, finance, issue bonds for, operate, maintain, and convey to 
another governmental entity a road that is a thoroughfare or arterial or collector or any 
improvement in aid of the road. The Board of Directors of the District is pursuing its 
acquisition of road powers to facilitate the construction of roads within the boundaries of 
the District. The District intends to convey the right of way for, and the completed 
construction of the roads to the City for ownership, operation, and maintenance. 
Pursuant to that certain Utility Agreement entered into between the District and the City 
dated January 8, 2019, as amended, the District's construction of road facilities and 
conveyance thereof to the City was expressly contemplated and authorized. 

ARTICLE III 

Section 54.016, Water Code, provides that consent of a city is required when land 
within a District is within a city's corporate boundaries or extraterritorial jurisdiction for 
creation of, annexation by, and other grants of new authority for a district. 

1117134 



ARTICLE IV 

At the meeting of the Board of Directors at which the Resolution to the TCEQ was 
approved and its submittal to the TCEQ was authorized, the Board of Directors also 
authorized this Petition to the City for its consent to the District's acquisition of road 
powers. 

WHEREFORE, the District's Board of Directors prays that this Petition be 
considered at the next regular meeting of the City of Magnolia, and that the City grant 
the Petition and enter an Order Consenting to the District's acquisition of road powers, 
pursuant to Section 54.234, Texas Water Code. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this_ day of----~ 2023. 

ATTEST: 

By: 
N ame: ----11-~=_.;;;:~=-==
Title: 

(SEAL) \\\\11111111,,,,,,,. 
~\\ ~1\C/OA :,I/,: ~,._ ~~\)r• r11L (;.,_ ~ 

-$' '\ \'<' • • • • • • • / f ~ 
$" ~ ••• •• ? ~ 
~~ -~+ • . .,L ~ :So : v- -.qs : u . . ·(/)=· ->- · .--i_ =a: • ..h. •2!:: : UJ °. \- :c-:,s 

-;:~ . •"' ;:: 
\ '0"·. s .. ·.&# 
~ <',t.,r,·•····• ·r,.,\\ ,$l ~ V /A, 'O ~--

.,,,: " V * \\\'< 
'l/111111111 Ill I\\\\\\ 

1117134 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 116 

By: 
Name: 
Title: _ L.1...1..<5,.__]~~::::....;n t 

-2-

hthompson
Typewritten Text
19

hthompson
Typewritten Text
July



CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
KELLY ROAD WATER PLANT GST AND HPT ADDITION 

WORK ORDER 23-005 

 
Engineer’s Project No. 2325624.60 

 
Project Description:   
 
This project consists of the construction of a 189,000-gallon glass-lined ground storage tank, 15,000-gallon 
hydropneumatic tank, fencing, detention pond and drainage system, electrical, and instrumentation. 
 
 
Engineering Services:  
  
Baxter & Woodman, Inc., will provide Construction Management and Field Observation for and during the 
construction of the Kelly Road Water Plant GST and HPT Addition. A detailed scope of services for this 
project is listed in Attachment A of this Work Order.  
 

Compensation:   
 
Compensation for the services to be provided under this Work Order will be in accordance with the Master 
Engineering Services Agreement dated September 14, 2021. The Owner shall pay Engineer for the services 
performed or furnished under Attachment A, based upon the Engineer’s standard hourly billing rates for 
actual work time performed during the Construction Contract Duration of 270 calendar days plus 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses including travel, which in total will not exceed $65,418.00.  
 

Submitted by:  Baxter & Woodman Inc. 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

Title: ___Executive Vice President___________ 

Date:  ___August 1, 2023____ _________________ 

Approved by:  City of Magnolia 

 

By: ____________________________________   

Title:  ____________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________________ 

     

 Additional Comments and Conditions:  All costs for Construction Management and Field Observation 
after the expiration of the construction contract period shall be addressed in accordance with Section 
00800 3.04B. and 3.12D 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Magnolia  
Kelly Rd Water Plant GST and HPT Addition 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-005 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

  
Project Description 

The project involves providing Construction Management and Field Observation during construction 
efforts by the Contractor to obtain Project Completion.  
   
Scope of Services 

A Construction Contract Duration of 270 calendar days was utilized in budgeting the following scope of 
services that details the anticipated tasks necessary to successfully complete this Project: 

 
1. Construction Administration  

a. Review Shop Drawing and Product submittals for general conformance with the design intent and 
provisions of the Contract Documents. Review of up to 40 submittals total, (includes submittals 
and re-submittals, if required) by ENGINEER and shall apply only to the items in the submissions 
and only for the purpose of assessing, if upon installation or incorporation in the Project, they are 
generally consistent with the construction documents. OWNER agrees that the contractor is solely 
responsible for the submissions (regardless of the format in which provided, i.e., hard copy or 
electronic transmission) and for compliance with the Contract Documents. OWNER further agrees 
that the ENGINEER’s review and action in relation to these submissions shall not constitute the 
provision of means, methods, techniques, sequencing, or procedures of construction or extend 
to safety programs of precautions. ENGINEER’s consideration of a component does not constitute 
acceptance of the assembled item.  

b. Prepare contract change orders and or work directives when authorized by the OWNER during 
the 9-month construction contract period. 

c. Research and prepare written response by ENGINEER to request for information from the OWNER 
and Contractor during the 9-month construction contract period. 

d. Construction Manager or other office staff up to five (5) site visits as needed during the 9-month 
construction contract period. 

 
2. Field Observation – Part Time 

a. ENGINEER will provide a Field Project Representative (FPR) at the construction site during the 
270-day construction contract period on a periodic part-time basis from the ENGINEER’s office of 
not more than eight (8) hours per month, not including legal holidays as deemed necessary by the 
OWNER.  Part-Time Field Observation provides that the FPR will make intermittent site visits to 
observe and report on the progress of Contractor’s executed Work during the 270-day 
construction contract period. Part-Time Field Observation does not guarantee the ENGINEER will 
observe or comment on work completed by the contractor at times the FPR is not present on site. 
Such visits and observations by the FPR, if any, are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to 
every aspect of Contractor’s Work in progress beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to 
ENGINEER in this Agreement. 

b. Through standard reasonable means, ENGINEER will become generally familiar with observable 



City of Magnolia  
Kelly Rd Water Plant GST and HPT Addition 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-005 
 

completed work during the 270-day construction contract period. If the ENGINEER observes 
completed work that is inconsistent with the construction documents, that information shall be 
communicated to the contractor and OWNER to address. ENGINEER shall not supervise, direct, 
control, or have charge or authority over any contractor’s work, nor shall the ENGINEER have 
authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures 
of construction selected or used by any contractor, or the safety precautions and programs 
incident thereto, for security or safety at the site, nor for any failure of any contractor to comply 
with laws and regulations applicable to such contractor’s furnishing and performing of its work. 
ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes responsibility for 
any contractor’s failure to furnish and perform the work in accordance with the contract 
documents, which contractor is solely responsible for its errors, omissions, and failure to carry 
out the work. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts of omissions of any contractor, 
subcontractor, supplier, manufacturer or any of their agents, employees or any person (except 
ENGINEER’s own agents, employees, and consultants) at the site or otherwise furnishing or 
performing any work; or for any decision made regarding the contract documents, or any 
application, interpretation, or clarification of the contract documents, other than those made by 
the ENGINEER.  

c. Keep a daily record of the Contractor’s work on those days that the FPR is at the construction site 
with notations on the Contractor’s progress during the 270-day construction contract period.  
 

3. Critical Phase Coatings and Sealant Inspection 
a. Provide, an on-site NACE Certified representative on a periodic part-time basis of not more than 

eight (8) hours per regular weekday, as deemed necessary by the Engineers with consent by 
OWNER, to assist the Contractor with interpretation of the Specifications, inspect, verify, and 
document in general if the Contractor’s work is in conformity with the Final Design Documents, 
and to monitor the Contractor’s progress as related to the Construction Contract date of 
completion. 

b. NACE Certified representative will inspect all surface preparations and coating applications per 
the National Association of Corrosion Engineers (NACE) standards. 
 

4. Substantial Completion of Project - Provide construction observation services when notified by the 
OWNER that the Project is substantially complete.  
 

5. Completion of Project 
a. Provide construction observation services when notified by OWNER that the Project is complete. 

Prepare written punch lists during final completion review and monitor and verify any required 
deficiencies correction. 

 
6. ENGINEER reviewed Construction Contract Documents and consulted with OWNER in preparing this 

Scope of Services and associated fee.  ENGINEER does not guarantee the Contractor will reach 
Contract Completion in the Contract time duration identified in the Construction Contract Proposal 
nor does ENGINEER control Contractor’s Schedule to complete the Contract Work. 



City of Magnolia  
Kelly Rd Water Plant GST and HPT Addition 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-005 
 
 
7. Special Services/Additional Services (to be authorized by separate written agreement) 

 
Construction Management and Observation beyond the Original Contract Completion Date 
Attend construction progress meetings as determined by City Engineer 
Cast In Place Concrete Formwork and Rebar – Inspection  
Concrete Placement - Inspection  
Verification of any Laboratory Testing Coordination 
Hydraulic Testing  
Hydrostatic Testing 
Leakage Testing 
Drainage Channel and Basins Inspection and Approval of foundation soil  
Performance Testing – Starting of Systems Electrical Troubleshooting 
Coordination with CenterPoint 
3D GIS 
Drone Captured Video Recording and Imagery 
 
 
It is generally agreed between the Contracting Parties that the ENGINEER has no control over the 
CONTRACTOR’s Schedule and that the ENGINEER cannot control Electrical Troubleshooting or 
coordination required with CenterPoint as such, the Contracting Parties agree that any documented 
additional work in reference to these items, and any other item listed above in Special Services, will be 
considered for an Amendment to this Work Order. 
 



CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
WATER PLANT No. 3 Phase 2  

WORK ORDER 23-004 

 
Engineer’s Project No. 211009.62 

 
Project Description:   
 
This project consists of the construction of a 410,000-gallon glass-lined ground storage tank, CMU control 
building, three (3) 1,000-gpm vertical turbine booster pumps, motor control center, chemical disinfection 
system, 800-kW diesel emergency power generator, detention pond and drainage system, electrical, 
instrumentation, and SCADA work. 
 
 
Engineering Services:  
  
Baxter & Woodman, Inc., will provide Construction Management and Field Observation for and during the 
construction of the Water Plant No. 3 Phase 2. A detailed scope of services for this project is listed in 
Attachment A of this Work Order.  
 

Compensation:   
 
Compensation for the services to be provided under this Work Order will be in accordance with the Master 
Engineering Services Agreement dated September 14, 2021. The Owner shall pay Engineer for the services 
performed or furnished under Attachment A, based upon the Engineer’s standard hourly billing rates for 
actual work time performed during the Construction Contract Duration of 600 calendar days plus 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses including travel, which in total will not exceed $88,154.00 
without additional authorization.  
 

Submitted by:  Baxter & Woodman Inc. 

 

By: _____________________________________________ 

Title: ___Executive Vice President___________ 

Date:  ___July 1, 2023____ _________________ 

Approved by:  City of Magnolia 

 

By: ____________________________________   

Title:  ____________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________________ 

     

 Additional Comments and Conditions:  All costs for Construction Management and Field Observation 
after the expiration of the construction contract period shall be addressed in accordance with Section 
00800 3.04B. 

 

 

 

 



City of Magnolia  
Water Plant No. 3 Phase 2 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-004 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

  
Project Description 

The project involves providing Construction Management and Field Observation during construction 

efforts by the Contractor to obtain Project Completion.  

   
Scope of Services 

A Construction Contract Duration of 600 calendar days was utilized in budgeting the following scope of 

services that details the anticipated tasks necessary to successfully complete this Project: 

 

1. Act as the OWNER’s representative with duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority as 

assigned in the construction contract documents. 

 

2. Construction Administration  

a. Review Shop Drawing and Product submittals for general conformance with the design intent and 

provisions of the Contract Documents. Review of up to 75 submittals total, (includes submittals 

and re-submittals, if required) by ENGINEER and shall apply only to the items in the submissions 

and only for the purpose of assessing, if upon installation or incorporation in the Project, they are 

generally consistent with the construction documents. OWNER agrees that the contractor is solely 

responsible for the submissions (regardless of the format in which provided, i.e., hard copy or 

electronic transmission) and for compliance with the Contract Documents. OWNER further agrees 

that the ENGINEER’s review and action in relation to these submissions shall not constitute the 

provision of means, methods, techniques, sequencing, or procedures of construction or extend 

to safety programs of precautions. ENGINEER’s consideration of a component does not constitute 

acceptance of the assembled item.  

b. Prepare construction contract change orders and or work directives when authorized by the 

OWNER during the 20-month construction contract period. 

c. Research and prepare written response by ENGINEER to request for information from the OWNER 

and Contractor during the 20-month construction contract period. 

d. Construction Manager or other office staff up to five (5) site visits as needed during the 20-month 

construction contract period. 

 

3. Field Observation – Part Time 

a. ENGINEER will provide a Field Project Representative (FPR) at the construction site during the 

600-day construction contract period on a periodic part-time basis from the ENGINEER’s office of 

not more than eight (8) hours per month, not including legal holidays as deemed necessary by the 

OWNER.  Part-Time Field Observation provides that the FPR will make intermittent site visits to 

observe and report on the progress of Contractor’s executed Work during the 600-day 

construction contract period. Part-Time Field Observation does not guarantee the ENGINEER will 

observe or comment on work completed by the contractor at times the FPR is not present on site. 

Such visits and observations by the FPR, if any, are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to 



City of Magnolia  
Water Plant No. 3 Phase 2 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-004 
 

every aspect of Contractor’s Work in progress beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to 

ENGINEER in this Agreement. 

b. Through standard reasonable means, ENGINEER will become generally familiar with observable 

completed work during the 600-day construction contract period. If the ENGINEER observes 

completed work that is inconsistent with the construction documents, that information shall be 

communicated to the contractor and OWNER to address. ENGINEER shall not supervise, direct, 

control, or have charge or authority over any contractor’s work, nor shall the ENGINEER have 

authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures 

of construction selected or used by any contractor, or the safety precautions and programs 

incident thereto, for security or safety at the site, nor for any failure of any contractor to comply 

with laws and regulations applicable to such contractor’s furnishing and performing of its work. 

ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes responsibility for 

any contractor’s failure to furnish and perform the work in accordance with the contract 

documents, which contractor is solely responsible for its errors, omissions, and failure to carry 

out the work. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts of omissions of any contractor, 

subcontractor, supplier, manufacturer or any of their agents, employees or any person (except 

ENGINEER’s own agents, employees, and consultants) at the site or otherwise furnishing or 

performing any work; or for any decision made regarding the contract documents, or any 

application, interpretation, or clarification of the contract documents, other than those made by 

the ENGINEER.  

c. Keep a daily record of the Contractor’s work on those days that the FPR is at the construction site 

with notations on the Contractor’s progress during the 600-day construction contract period.  

d. Baxter & Woodman to provide an FPR Daily Report template that will be used by OWNER when 

performing Field Observation documenting a daily record of the Contractor’s work on the days 

that the OWNER is providing Field Observation.  

 

4. Critical Phase Coatings and Sealant Inspection 

a. Provide, an on-site NACE Certified representative on a periodic part-time basis of not more than 

eight (8) hours per regular weekday, as deemed necessary by the Engineers with consent by 

OWNER, to assist the Contractor with interpretation of the Specifications, inspect, verify, and 

document in general if the Contractor’s work is in conformity with the Final Design Documents, 

and to monitor the Contractor’s progress as related to the Construction Contract date of 

completion. 

b. NACE Certified representative will inspect all surface preparations and coating applications per 

the National Association of Corrosion Engineers (NACE) standards. 

 

5. Substantial Completion of Project - Provide construction observation services when notified by the 

OWNER that the Project is substantially complete.  

 

6. Completion of Project 

a. Provide construction observation services when notified by OWNER that the Project is complete. 

Prepare written punch lists during final completion review and monitor and verify any required 



City of Magnolia  
Water Plant No. 3 Phase 2 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-004 
 

deficiencies correction. 

 

7. ENGINEER reviewed Construction Contract Documents and consulted with OWNER in preparing this 

Scope of Services and associated fee.  ENGINEER does not guarantee the Contractor will reach 

Contract Completion in the Contract time duration identified in the Construction Contract Proposal 

nor does ENGINEER control Contractor’s Schedule to complete the Contract Work. 

 

8. Special Services/Additional Services (to be authorized by separate written agreement) 

 

Construction Management and Observation beyond the Original Contract Completion Date 

Attend construction progress meetings as determined by City Engineer 

Cast In Place Concrete Formwork and Rebar – Inspection  

Concrete Placement - Inspection  

Verification of any Laboratory Testing Coordination 

Hydraulic Testing  

Hydrostatic Testing 

Leakage Testing 

Drainage Channel and Basins Inspection and Approval of foundation soil  

Performance Testing – Starting of Systems Electrical Troubleshooting 

Coordination with CenterPoint 

3D GIS 

Drone Captured Video Recording and Imagery 

 

 

It is generally agreed between the Contracting Parties that the ENGINEER has no control over the 

CONTRACTOR’s Schedule and that the ENGINEER cannot control Electrical Troubleshooting or 

coordination required with CenterPoint as such, the Contracting Parties agree that any documented 

additional work in reference to these items, and any other item listed above in Special Services, will be 

considered for an Amendment to this Work Order. 

 



CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
WATER PLANT No. 3 PHASE 1 

Construction Management Services 
 WORK ORDER - AMENDMENT  

 

 
Engineer’s Project No. ___211009.61__________  

 
Project Description:   
 
This project consists of the construction of new 1,000 gpm water well, 10,000-gallon hydropneumatic 
tank, chemical disinfection system and fiberglass buildings, associated piping, electrical work, fencing, 
crushed stone driveway, and site restoration.    
 
 
 
Engineering Services:  
  
Baxter & Woodman, Inc. will provide a continuation of Construction Management services for Water Plant 
3 Phase 1 construction project for the final completion of construction. 
 
A detailed scope of additional services for this Project is listed in Attachment A of this Work Order.  
 

Amended Compensation:   

The Engineer’s fee for the Project shall be amended as follows: 

Current Not-to-Exceed Work Order Limit: $114,100 

Net Lump Sum increase of this Amendment $25,500 

Amended Not-to-Exceed Limit: $139,600 

Submitted by:  Baxter & Woodman, Inc. 

 

By:_______________________________________________

 Michael A. Kurzy, PE 

Title: Vice President 

Date:____July 5, 2023_____ _____________ 

 

Approved by:  City of Magnolia  

 
By: ______________________________________________

  

Title:  

Date: _____________________________________________ 

 

     

Additional Comments and Conditions:  All other provisions of the Work Order shall remain in full force 

and effect. 



City of Magnolia          Attachment A 
Water Plant 3 Phase 1 
Construction Management Services  
Work Order - Amendment 

 
Project Description - Amended 

This Project involves providing continued Construction Administration and Field Observation for the final 
completion construction effort by the Contractor during the construction and commissioning of Water 
Plant 3 Phase 1. The City of Magnolia added significant scope of work to this project to expedite well water 
pumpage due to a temporary development moratorium and Contractor’s equipment delivery delays. The 
Original Contract Completion date of June 30, 2023, has passed and currently the project is 77% complete.    
 
An additional 62 calendar days are needed beyond the original contract time of 270 calendar days for a 
total of 332 calendar days. Additional time is due to unforeseen Contractor’s construction equipment 
delivery delays and City of Magnolia’s additional Scope. The Well Pump Motor was upsized to 300HP 
following the well pilot testing, the base-bid design was for 250HP VFD which was submitted by the 
contractor and approved as noted on January 11, 2023. Contractor was informed that the approved VFD 
originally scheduled for delivery in early May 2023, was pushed by the manufacturer to an estimated 
delivery of December 2023. Contractor was informed that this was unacceptable and was tasked to seek 
other options to expedite delivery of the proposed 300HP well pump motor. Contractor found a 450HP 
480V 3-Phase VFD that was suitable for the proposed change in the well pump motor with a delivery date 
of May 2023. Additional construction administration was needed to review new equipment submittals, 
coordination of design and construction for upsizing building, foundation and electrical to accommodate 
the 450HP VFD. The contractor was requested to provide costs and schedule for delivery and install the 
Temporary Water Well Feed System equipment and maintain until permanent well pump and motor 
equipment was delivered and installed. A significant effort was undertaken to get this Temporary Water 
Well Feed System in place and operating, the proposed temporary water well feed system was installed 
in conjunction with the permanent water well system to temporarily provide water from the new water 
well to the City’s water system consisting of a well pump, generator, chemical equipment, and all 
associated electrical appurtenances for three (3) months. The Contractor’s additional costs were 
identified in Change Order No. 2 which Baxter & Woodman negotiated.   

Scope of Services 

The following scope of services details the continuation of tasks providing Construction Administration 

and Field Observation necessary to successfully complete this Project: 

1. Act as the OWNER’s representative with duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority as 
assigned in the construction contract documents. 

 
2. Construction Administration  

a. Continuing CenterPoint Coordination. 
b. Shop drawing and submittal review by ENGINEER shall apply only to the items in the 

submissions and only for the purpose of assessing if upon installation or incorporation in the 
Project, they are generally consistent with the construction documents. OWNER agrees that 
the contractor is solely responsible for the submissions (regardless of the format in which 
provided, i.e., hard copy or electronic transmission) and for compliance with the contract 
documents. OWNER further agrees that the ENGINEER’s review and action in relation to these 
submissions shall not constitute the provision of means, methods, techniques, sequencing, or 
procedures of construction or extend to safety programs of precautions. ENGINEER’s 
consideration of a component does not constitute acceptance of the assembled item. 

c. Review construction record drawings for completeness prior to submission to CADD. 
d. Prepare construction contract change orders and work directives when authorized by the 



City of Magnolia          Attachment A 
Water Plant 3 Phase 1 
Construction Management Services  
Work Order - Amendment 

 
OWNER. 

e. Review the Contractor’s requests for payments as construction work progresses and advise 
the OWNER of amounts due and payable to the Contractor in accordance with the terms of 
the construction contract documents. 

f. Research and prepare written response by ENGINEER to request for information from the 
OWNER and Contractor. 

g. Construction Manager or other office staff visit site as needed. 
 
3. Field Observation – Part Time 

a. ENGINEER will provide a Field Project Representative (FPR) at the construction site on a 
periodic part-time basis from the ENGINEER’s office of not more than eight (8) hours per 
regular weekday, not including legal holidays as deemed necessary by the ENGINEER, to assist 
the Contractor with interpretation of the Drawings and Specifications, to observe in general 
if the Contractor’s work is in conformity with the Final Design Documents and to monitor the 
Contractor’s progress as related to the Construction Contract date of completion.  

b. Through standard reasonable means, ENGINEER will become generally familiar with 
observable completed work. If the ENGINEER observes completed work that is inconsistent 
with the construction documents, that information shall be communicated to the contractor 
and OWNER to address. ENGINEER shall not supervise, direct, control, or have charge or 
authority over any contractor’s work, nor shall the ENGINEER have authority over or be 
responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction 
selected or used by any contractor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, 
for security or safety at the site, nor for any failure of any contractor to comply with laws and 
regulations applicable to such contractor’s furnishing and performing of its work. ENGINEER 
neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes responsibility for any 
contractor’s failure to furnish and perform the work in accordance with the contract 
documents, for which contractor is solely responsible for its errors, omissions, and failure to 
carry out the work. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts of omission of any 
contractor, subcontractor, supplier, manufacturer, or any of their agents, employees, or any 
person (except ENGINEER’s own agents, employees, and consultants) at the site or otherwise 
furnishing or performing any work; or for any decision made regarding the contract 
documents, or any application, interpretation, or clarification of the contract documents, 
other than those made by the ENGINEER.  

c. Part-Time Field Observation provides that the FPR will make intermittent site visits to observe 
the progress and quality of Contractor’s executed Work. Part-Time Field Observation does not 
guarantee the ENGINEER will observe or comment on work completed by the contractor at 
times the FPR is not present on site. Such visits and observations by the FPR, if any, are not 
intended to be exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of Contractor’s Work in progress 
beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to ENGINEER in this Agreement and the 
Contract Documents, but rather are to be limited to spot checking, selective sampling, and 
similar methods of general observation of the Work based on ENGINEER’s exercise of 
professional judgement as assisted by FPR, if any. 

d. Keep a daily record of the Contractor’s work on those days that the ENGINEERs are at the 
construction site including notations on the nature and cost of any extra work.  
 

4. Critical Phase Coatings and Sealant Inspection 
a. Provide, an on-site NACE Certified representative on a periodic part-time basis of not more 

than eight (8) hours per regular weekday, as deemed necessary by the Engineers, to assist the 
Contractor with interpretation of the Specifications, inspect, verify, and document in general 



City of Magnolia          Attachment A 
Water Plant 3 Phase 1 
Construction Management Services  
Work Order - Amendment 

 
if the Contractor’s work is in conformity with the Final Design Documents, and to monitor the 
Contractor’s progress as related to the Construction Contract date of completion. 

b. NACE Certified representative will inspect all surface preparations and coating applications 
for yard piping as per the National Association of Corrosion Engineers (NACE) standards. 

 
5. Performance Testing – Starting of Systems  

a. ENGINEER will attend Contractor’s Unit Process Testing and Startup Meeting(s) and Facility 
Startup Meeting(s) to discuss testing and startup schedules, test methods, required 
materials and utilities for Contractor installed Products, Unit Processes, and Facilities. 
Discussions will include Operation Interface, OWNER, and ENGINEER involvement. 
Manufacturer’s representative involved in the installation and its coordination or integration 
into the Work shall attend the meeting. Contractor’s testing and startup schedule shall be 
approved by the OWNER and ENGINEER prior to commencing any testing procedures. 

b. ENGINEER will observe Functional (or run) testing for all equipment and systems. 
c. ENGINEER to review equipment manufacturer written report covering checkout, testing, 

inspections, and start-up. Any deficiencies noted in the report shall be corrected by the 
Contractor and verified by the ENGINEER.  

d. Monitor Operator Training.  
e. Prior to acceptance of any portion of the Work, start-up and testing of all equipment and 

materials furnished on the Project by Contractor shall have been conducted in the presence 
of representatives of Contractor, OWNER, and ENGINEER, and manufacturer if requested by 
OWNER or ENGINEER. 

 
6. Substantial Completion of Project - Provide construction inspection services when notified by the 

Contractor that the Project is substantially complete. Prepare written punch lists during 
substantial completion inspections. 

 
7. Completion of Project 

a. Provide construction inspection services when notified by Contractor that the Project is 
complete. Prepare written punch lists during final completion inspections and monitor any 
required deficiencies correction. 

b. Prepare and review Final Payment and project closeout documents. 
c. Review Contractor’s written guarantees and issue a Certificate of Acceptance to contractor 

and Certificate of Completion to OWNER.  
 

8. Project Closeout - Provide construction-related engineering services including, but not limited to, 
General Construction Administration and Resident Project Representative Services. 

 
9. Drone Captured Progress Video Recording 

a. Provide drone flights over the Project Site on a periodic basis of not more than two (2) hours 
per month (for up to 6 hours), from Project Initiation through Project Completion, to record 
the various stages and associated progress of the construction activities. Drone flights will 
provide high-resolution video and imagery. 

b. Drone will be flown by a licensed Drone Pilot. 
c. All Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) requirements will be reviewed and met before each 

flight. 



 
CITY OF MAGNOLIA 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION  
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES 

WORK ORDER AMENDMENT NO. 2  
 
 

Engineer’s Project No. 220961.60 
 
Purpose of Amendment:   
 
This amendment to the original Work Order dated June 14, 2022, provides for additional scope of services 
and compensation that are being added to the Project. 
 
 
Amended Engineering Services:   
 
The scope of service is amended to include special services/additional services and extended Construction 
Management and Inspection Services for Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion. 
 
A detailed scope of special services/additional services for this project is listed   The amended scope of 
services is set forth in Attachment A. 
 
 
Amended Compensation:   
 
The Engineer’s fee for the Project shall be amended as follows: 
 

Current Not-to-Exceed Work Order Limit: $ 40,500 
 
Net increase/decrease of this Amendment $ 36,847 

 
Amended Not-to-Exceed Limit: $ 77,347 

 
 

 
Submitted by:  Baxter & Woodman, Inc. 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
               Michael A. Kurzy, PE 
Title: Executive Vice President  
 
Date:  _August 1, 2023_______________________ 
 

 
Approved by:  City of Magnolia 
 
By: __________________________________
   
                 
Title:      Mayor 
  
Date: __________________________________ 

     
  
Additional Comments and Conditions:  All other provisions of the Work Order shall remain in full force 
and effect. 
 
 

 
 



City of Magnolia  Attachment A 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion  Page 2 of 2 
Construction Management & Inspection Services 
Special Services/Additional Services  
Work Order Amendment No. 2 
 
 
Project Description 
Special Services/Additional Services performing required Instrumentation and Controls Troubleshooting, 
Electrical Troubleshooting to perform SCADA Start-Up of Treatment Unit 3 and extended Construction 
Administration and Field Observation required for Rehabilitation of Treatment Unit No. 2 to remain in 
compliance with TCEQ and reach final completion. This work will require NACE certified site inspection for 
the coating and rehabilitation work. Owner added Scope and B & W coordinated with Owner and 
Contractor to seal Manholes that were installed during Nichols Sawmill Phases 1 and 2.  
    
Scope of Services 
The following scope of services details the anticipated tasks necessary to successfully complete this 
Project: 
 

1. Providing Construction Management Services including 
a. Coordinate with Owner and Contractor to schedule CenterPoint 

b. Coordinate with Owner and Contractor to schedule AT&T services 

c. Review and response for RFIs  
d. Pay Estimate processing 
e. Change Order processing 
f. Final inspection 
g. Construction Manager or other office staff visit site as needed 

 

2. Providing Field Project Representation 
a. On site Observations  
b. Witness testing  
c. Coordination Equipment Start-Up, testing, and training  
d. Daily Reports when on site 
e. Observed and documented non-conforming work and monitored contractors 

corrective actions 
 

3. Critical Phase Coatings and Sealant Inspection 

a. Provide, an on-site NACE Certified representative on a periodic part-time basis of 

not more than eight (8) hours per regular weekday, as deemed necessary by the 

Engineers, to assist the Contractor with interpretation of the Specifications, 

inspect, verify, and document in general if the Contractor’s work is in conformity 

with the Final Design Documents, and to monitor the Contractor’s progress as 

related to the Construction Contract date of completion. 

b. NACE Certified representative will inspect all surface preparations and coating 
applications per the National Association of Corrosion Engineers (NACE) 
standards.  

 
 



   
 

   
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT 
REPORT 

 
July 2023 

 
 

Prepared by: 
Kyle Montgomery 

Chief of Police 



 
  

   

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
 
 
 
 

Organizational Chart 
 
 
 
 

 

Chief of Police 
Kyle Montgomery 

Administrative Services 
-Lt. S. Soto- 

Operational Services 
-Lt. S Soto- 

Admin Assistants 
-E. White/K. Blazo- 

Information Mngt 
-K. Montgomery- 

Audits 
-K. Montgomery- 

     TCIC/NCIC 
      -K. Blazo- 

Purchasing 
-K. Montgomery- 

NIBRS 
-E. White- 

TCOLE 
-K. Montgomery- 
Communications 

-K. Blazo- 

Emergency Management 
-K. Montgomery- 

Fleet Management 
-Sgt. Salmassi- 

Budget 
-K. Montgomery- 

Public Information Officer 
-K. Montgomery- 

 
Patrol 

 Community Events 
-E. White- 

Court Liaison 
-Sgt. Hudson- Training 

Sgt. Landrum/Hudson 
- Grants 

-K. Montgomery- 

Building Maintenance/Ops 
-Sgt Salmassi- 

Quarter Master 
-K. Blazo- 

Evidence Technician 
-M. Andrews- 

Background Investigations 
-Lt. Soto- 

IA Investigations 
-Lt. Soto- 

Crime Prevention 
-Ofc. Manzo- 

Inspections 
-Sgt Landrum- 

Wrecker Rotation 
-Sgt. Tucker- 

UAV Program 
-O. Manzo- 

B-Nights 
-Sgt. Hudson- 

Range Master 
 Sgt. Tucker/Landrum- 

F.T.O. Program 
-Lt. Soto - 

B-Days 
-Sgt. Salmassi- 

Traffic Unit 
-Sgt Salmassi - 

A-Nights 
-Sgt. Landrum- 

Special Ops 
-Sgt. Tucker- 

Reserve Officers 
-Sgt. Hudson- 

A-Days 
 

CID 
-Lt. Soto- 

Public Information Requests 
-K. Montgomery- 



 

  

 

 

PATROL 
 
 

 

CALL BREAKDOWN 
 
 

 June July Monthly 
Change 

EMERGENCY 17 16 -1 

NON-EMERGENCY 300 267 -33 

 
 
CALLS FOR SERVICE 
 
 
 

 June July Monthly 
Change 2023 

Total Calls for Service 317 283 -34 2,018 

*The total calls for service include all priorities, event entries, and officer-initiated calls. 
 

 
OFFENSE REPORTS 
 

 June July Monthly 
Change 

Report Totals 58 54 -4 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

  

 

 

 
 
RESIDENTIAL PATROLS 
 

 
Windmill 
Estates 

Magnolia 
Ridge 

Dogwood 
Patches 

Mustang 
Ridge 

Timber 
Hollow 

Total 

June       131 136 143 118 143 671 

July       141         159 144 141      149 734 

 
 

 
CALL TOTALS 
 
 

OFFENSES June July MONTHLY 
CHANGE 

Burglary of a Vehicle 0 1 +1 

Burglary of a Building 0 0 - 

Burglary of a Habitation 0 0 - 

Theft 6 1 -5 

Fraud/Forgery 2 1 -1 

Criminal Mischief 1 3 +2 

Robbery 0 0 - 

Assault/Family Violence 2 1 -1 

Death Investigation 1 1 - 

Sexual Assault 0 0 - 

Motor Vehicle Crash 15 13 -2 

Alarms 28 29 +1 

Medical calls 15      14 -1 

Welfare Checks 17 13 -4 

Disturbances 6 3 -3 

Assist Outside Agency 8 10 +2 

Narcotics 13 7 -6 

DWI      8 16 +8 



 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CRIMINAL ARRESTS 
 
 
 
 
 

 June July MONTHLY 
CHANGE 

TOTAL ARRESTS 32 30 -2 

NARCOTICS 13 7 -6 

DWI 8 16 +8 
 
 

 
TRAFFIC CONTACTS BY RACE 
 
 

 
Asian/ 
Pacific 

Black Hispanic 
Alaskan/ 

Indian 
White 

June       13 65 225 3 610 

July       14 65 246 4 599 

Change +1 - +21 +1 -11 



 

 

 

 

TRAFFIC CRASHES 
 

 June July MONTHLY 
CHANGE 

Fatal 0 0 - 

Injury 0 1 +1 

Non-Injury 15 12 -3 
 
 
 
 

TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT 
 
 

 June July MONTHLY 
CHANGE 

FM 1488 534 638 +104 

FM 1774 187 153 -34 

Magnolia Blvd 350 293 -57 

Buddy Riley 130 137 +7 

Nichols Sawmill 38 32 -6 

Total Violations 1,202 1,219 +17 
 
 

COMMERCIAL PATROLS 
 
 
 
 

 June July MONTHLY 
CHANGE 

Business Checks 902 976 +74 

Business Contacts 23 18 -5 

Totals 925 994 +69 

 



 

 

 

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS 

 
 
 

 June July MONTHLY 
CHANGE 

Assault 1 0 -1 

Sexual Assault 0 0 - 

Robbery 1 0 -1 

Death 0 0      - 

Persons 
Crime Totals 

2 0 -2 

Burglary-Building 0 0 - 

Burglary-Vehicle 0 0 - 

Burglary-Habitation 0 0 - 

Theft 3 1 -2 

Hit and Run Crashes 0 0 - 

Financial Crime 1 1 - 

Criminal Mischief 0 1 +1 

Property Crime 
Totals 

4 3 -1 

Arrests/Warrants 3 5 +2 
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2023 

Total Cases 39 

Cleared 17 

Clearance Rate 44% 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2023 MAGNOLIA MUNICIPAL COURT CASE MANAGEMENT REPORT 

Month
Citations 

Issued

Violations 

Issued

Warnings 

Issued

New 

Warrants 

Issued 

Warrants 

Cleared

Arraignment  

Cases 

Juvenile 

Court 

Cases

Judge 

Trial 

cases

*Jury

Trial 

Cases

Show 

Cause 

cases

January

February 

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November 

December 

TOTAL

Completed By: Frances Suarez

277        367 504 82 38 50 4 0 0     6

2,088  2,804 3,938 451 418  322  18 3 0 59

282 350 435 74 85 55 3 0 0    7

326 452 485 17 79 45 2 0 0 7

326 424 575 75 51 35 3 1  0 25

 314 428 609 0  66 64 2 0 0 6

267 352 664 199 56 23 0 0 0 0

326 431 666 4 43 50 4 2 0 8



FY 2023 MAGNOLIA MUNICIPAL COURT COLLECTIONS REPORT

Month

Citations Paid 

through traffic 

payment.com 

Citations paid in 

office or through 

the mail

Total court collections 

OCT.2022

Nov.2022

Dec.2022

Jan.2023

Feb.2023

Mar.2023

Apr. 2023

May 2023

Jun. 2023

Jul. 2023

Aug. 2023

Sept. 2023

Total:

by: Frances Suarez 

23,274.55 17,855.25 41,129.80

324,231.56 240,317.33 564,734.66

19,180.72 10,980.89 30,161.61

28,022.55 17,011.03 45,033.58

30,894.61 25,438.27 56,332.88

36,438.45 22,882.45 59,320.95

42,773.69 34,185.45 76,959.14

64,408.0235, 417.97 28,990.05

39, 020.56 30,638.98 69, 659.54

40,486.23 25,138.55 65,624.78

28,718.23 27,196.41 55, 914.64 

fsuarez
Underline





1 
 

City Administrator’s Report for August 8, 2023 
Every day is a new adventure here in Magnolia!  Here is a partial list of some 
of my recent activities since the last City Council Meeting: 
 
 
07/13 Met with local developer  
 
07/13 Attended pre-development meeting 
 
07/13 Attend 4A meeting 
 
07/13 Attend 4B meeting 
 
07/17 Attended pre construction meeting for Water Plant 3 Phase 2 
 
07/17 Met with developer to discuss a park plan 
 
07/18 Met with CenterPoint representatives to discuss emergency planning 
 
07/18 Met with Blackfin Pipeline representative to discuss new gas pipeline 
 
07/19 Attended Department Head meeting 
 
07/20 Met with Developer 
 
07/20 Attended Chamber of Commerce meeting. 
 
07/21 Attended Moratorium/Connection meeting 
 
07/21 Met with Engineers 
 
07/25 Attended P & Z meeting 
 
07/31 Met with Area City Administrators/Managers 
 
08/01 Met with City Engineer and EDC Director 
 
08/01 Met with possible new service provider 
 
08/02 Met with Blackfin Pipeline representative to discuss new gas pipeline 
I have attached a 2 - page Financial Summary. 
 
Don Doering 



City of Magnolia
Financial Summary

July 31, 2023
84% of Fiscal Year

Budgeted Actual Percent

General Fund
Revenue $6,953,497 $4,201,625 60%
Expenses $5,645,197 $4,795,436 85%

Water & Sewer Fund
Revenue $10,718,971 $8,335,702 78%
Expenses $5,685,544 $4,319,553 76%

Capital Projects Enter.
Revenue $500,000 $187,642 38%
Expenses $4,020,000 $8,279,188 206%

Debt Service
Revenue $786,235 $1,288,841 164%
Expenses $785,718 $131,328 17%

4B Community Dev.
Revenue $782,821 $532,086 68%
Expenses $782,821 $452,749 58%

4A Economic Dev.
Revenue $1,302,000 $1,077,733 83%
Expenses $1,174,720 $644,986 55%

Red Light Camera
Revenue $0 $0 0%
Expenses $0 $0 0%

445 Road Repair
Revenue $662,000 $585,957 89%
Expenses $450,000 $8,392 2%

Hotel/Motel Occup.
Revenue $50,000 $42,765 86%
Expenses $25,000 $19,843 79%

MC Security Fund
Revenue $7,000 $10,559 151%
Expenses $5,000 $6,015 120%

Page 1



City of Magnolia
Financial Summary

July 31, 2023
84% of Fiscal Year

Budgeted Actual

MC Tech. Fund
Revenue $9,000 $11,700 130%
Expenses $8,100 $11,813 146%

Scofflaw
Revenue $0 $0 0%
Expenses $0 $0 0%

In-Kind Franchise
Revenue $0 $6,057 100%+
Expenses $0 $0 0%

Capital Projects
Revenue $0 $17,500 100%+
Expenses $0 $70,570 100%+

Magnolia Ridge PID
Revenue $124,315 $120,285 97%
Expenses $115,785 $45,393 39%

Seized Property
Revenue $0 $135 100%+
Expenses $0 $10,357 100%+

Judicial Efficiency
Revenue $200 $1,477 739%
Expenses $0 $0 0%

Total Revenue $21,896,039 $16,420,064 75%

Total Expenses $18,697,885 $18,795,623 101%

Total Rev - Capital P. $21,396,039 $16,214,922 76%

Total Exp. - Capital P. $14,677,885 $10,445,865 71%

Financial Summary 07312023

Page 2



City of Magnolia
Financial Summary

July 31, 2023
84% of Fiscal Year

Budgeted Actual Percent

General Fund
Revenue $6,953,497 $4,201,625 60%
Expenses $5,645,197 $4,795,436 85%

Water & Sewer Fund
Revenue $10,718,971 $8,335,702 78%
Expenses $5,685,544 $4,319,553 76%

Capital Projects Enter.
Revenue $500,000 $187,642 38%
Expenses $4,020,000 $8,279,188 206%

Debt Service
Revenue $786,235 $1,288,841 164%
Expenses $785,718 $131,328 17%

4B Community Dev.
Revenue $782,821 $532,086 68%
Expenses $782,821 $452,749 58%

4A Economic Dev.
Revenue $1,302,000 $1,077,733 83%
Expenses $1,174,720 $644,986 55%

Red Light Camera
Revenue $0 $0 0%
Expenses $0 $0 0%

445 Road Repair
Revenue $662,000 $585,957 89%
Expenses $450,000 $8,392 2%

Hotel/Motel Occup.
Revenue $50,000 $42,765 86%
Expenses $25,000 $19,843 79%

MC Security Fund
Revenue $7,000 $10,559 151%
Expenses $5,000 $6,015 120%

Page 1



City of Magnolia
Financial Summary

July 31, 2023
84% of Fiscal Year

Budgeted Actual

MC Tech. Fund
Revenue $9,000 $11,700 130%
Expenses $8,100 $11,813 146%

Scofflaw
Revenue $0 $0 0%
Expenses $0 $0 0%

In-Kind Franchise
Revenue $0 $6,057 100%+
Expenses $0 $0 0%

Capital Projects
Revenue $0 $17,500 100%+
Expenses $0 $70,570 100%+

Magnolia Ridge PID
Revenue $124,315 $120,285 97%
Expenses $115,785 $45,393 39%

Seized Property
Revenue $0 $135 100%+
Expenses $0 $10,357 100%+

Judicial Efficiency
Revenue $200 $1,477 739%
Expenses $0 $0 0%

Total Revenue $21,896,039 $16,420,064 75%

Total Expenses $18,697,885 $18,795,623 101%

Total Rev - Capital P. $21,396,039 $16,214,922 76%

Total Exp. - Capital P. $14,677,885 $10,445,865 71%

Financial Summary 07312023

Page 2



CITY OF 
MAGNOLIA 

  

ENGINEERING REPORT 
AUGUST 8, 2023 

1. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) PROJECTS IN DESIGN  

A. Water Plant No. 3 (Guillemont Water Plant)   

Water Plant No. 3 Phase III Design (EST, Second Onsite Water Well) 

Water Plant No. 3 Phase III design includes a 1,000 gpm water well in the Evangeline 

Aquifer and a 500,000-gallon composite elevated storage tank (EST).  

The hydrogeologic subconsultant is underway with their report. The proposed well will be 

pumping from the Evangeline Aquifer. The proposed well will not meet the Lone Star 

Groundwater Conservation District (LSGCD) spacing requirements from other nearby 

wells in the Chicot Aquifer. We will work with the hydrogeologic subconsultant to request 

an exception with the LSGCD from this spacing rule.  

The proposed well location’s 150-foot sanitary control radius extents outside of City limits. 

The surveyor is underway with metes and bounds exhibits and descriptions for the sanitary 

control easements. Once complete, we will coordinate with the attorney for the City 

regarding the acquisition process.   

The proposed site plan has been sent to City Staff for review and comment.  

The project is scheduled to be advertised and bid at the end of this year, with construction 

commencing at the beginning of next year.  

B. Ground Storage Tank (GST) and Hydropneumatic Tank (HPT) Addition at 
Water Plant No. 2 (Kelly Road Water Plant) 

The bonds and insurance have been verified. We will provide a work order for construction 

management services to City Staff prior to the Council meeting.  

For action: Consideration and possible action to authorize Work Order 23-005 for 

construction management services for the Ground Storage Tank and Hydropneumatic 

Tank Addition at Kelly Road Water Plant for a total cost of $65,418. 

C. Sagebrush (Dogwood Patches) Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation (CDBG 
Funding) 

A letter was sent to the TDA in July requesting an amendment for a scope change and 

contract extension. Pending TDA approval, the first advertisement is scheduled for August 

18, 2023, and the bid opening scheduled for September 1, 2023.  

D. Amarillo Drive Replacement and Smith Road Repairs 

Design is underway with the pavement replacement of Amarillo Drive and the widening of 

Smith Road. Amarillo Drive will be removed and replaced with asphalt pavement. Initial 



 

CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
ENGINEERING REPORT 
AUGUST 8, 2023 
PAGE 2 OF 8 

 

design indicates Smith Road is currently 14-feet wide but can be widened to 18-feet. The 

project is scheduled to advertise this fall, with construction commencing at the beginning 

of next year.  

E. Metered Interconnects with Montgomery County MUD No. 131 (Audubon) 

There is no update this reporting period.  

The City authorized design for installation of four (4) water meters at the Audubon 

connections to the City’s water distribution system. We received plans from Audubon and 

there are five (5) connections to the City’s system. It is our understanding the City Attorney 

and City Staff are reviewing the possibility of an ordinance to require developers install 

and pay for interconnect meters between their public water system and the City’s public 

water system. The topographic survey is complete, and the project is on hold. We await 

further direction from City Staff before proceeding.  

F. Melton Street Sanitary Sewer System  

As noted in the previous months, the Melton Street sanitary sewer system experiences 

issues after a heavy rain. We additionally noted that the sanitary sewer lines are generally 

in moderate to good condition. The rim elevations of the sanitary sewer manholes seem 

to be too low and may allow for inflow. At least one sanitary sewer manhole top was 

disconnected from the manhole structure, being a main source of inflow. The immediate 

recommendation is to repair the two manholes with broken tops. The long-term 

recommendation is to raise the manhole rims to ensure they are all 4-6 inches above 

grade, rehabilitate the manholes with a cementitious liner, seal and vent the manhole 

covers, provide flood resistant doors on the sanitary sewer lift station, and rehabilitate the 

sanitary sewer lines by cured in place plastic pipe (CIPP) liner. No action has taken place 

on this line as the City indicated that they wanted the new City Engineer to review this. 

2. WATER PLANT NO. 3 TEMPORARY FACILITIES 

The temporary pressure system will stay in place until the site is connected to permanent 

power and the pumping equipment for Water Well No. 7 has been upsized to its final 

capacity. It is anticipated upsizing the pumping equipment will take three weeks.  

3. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) PROJECTS IN CONSTRUCTION  

A. Water Well No. 8 at Water Plant No. 2 (Kelly Road Water Plant) 

Contractor: Weisinger, Inc.; Site Subcontractor: Long & Son, Inc.  

Contract Time / Completion Date: 290 calendar days / November 30, 2023 

Contract Amount: $2,899,500.00 

The step test was completed on July 26, 2023. The well pumping rate was able to achieve 

2,107 gpm. The well was designed for 500 gpm. The 36-hour test began on July 28, 2023. 

We are coordinating with the contractor to determine timeframes and costs to upsize the 

well pump. Upsizing likely includes an upgrade to the electrical service, the weather hood, 



 

CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
ENGINEERING REPORT 
AUGUST 8, 2023 
PAGE 3 OF 8 

 

and the controls. We anticipate being able to achieve 1,500 gpm from this well at a future 

date.  

Weisinger, Inc. has submitted Pay Estimate No. 5 for $214,981.20 (attached). This 

amount represents partial payment for furnishing test pump equipment and installation of 

underground electrical duct banks and pull boxes.  

  

Water pumping for the step test  Electrical duct bank installation 

 

B. Water Plant No. 3 (Guillemont Water Plant)  

Phase I (Water Well No. 7) 

Contractor: R & B Group, Inc.; Drilling Subcontractor: Weisinger, Inc.  

Contract Time / Completion Date: 270 calendar days / June 30, 2023  

Contract Amount: $3,281,100.00 

Water Well No. 7 is online and is pumping water into the City’s distribution system. 

CenterPoint has extended power to the site. The contractor’s electrical subcontractor, 

EAC, is underway with the service entrance installation. Once complete, a meter can be 

requested, and the pumping equipment can be upsized. It is anticipated the well will be 

offline for three weeks for the upsizing.  

It is our understanding the City has contracted a structural engineering company to review 

the modified footings for the 20,000-gallon HPT. The 10,000-gallon HPT has been 

delivered to the Kelly Road Water Plant.  

We are underway with a submittal package to the TCEQ for approval of orthophosphate 

at this water well for corrosion prevention in the distribution system.  

R&B Group, Inc. has submitted Pay Estimate No. 7 for $244,514.66 (attached). This 

amount represents partial payment for installation of water well discharge piping, 8-foot by 

8-foot fiberglass building, concrete foundation for other fiberglass building, underground 

duct bank, furnishing and setting hydropneumatic tank, yard piping, disinfection 

equipment, and work per Change Orders No. 2 and 3.   



 

CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
ENGINEERING REPORT 
AUGUST 8, 2023 
PAGE 4 OF 8 

 

  

Water well discharge piping Electrical duct bank to power pole  

 

The contract completion time has been extended by 62 calendar days due to construction 

equipment delivery days and a scope increase. The scope increase was for the temporary 

pumping equipment to put the water well online at a lower capacity in order to get water 

into the system as quick as possible. This requires additional construction management 

and field project representation time to coordinate the project and review contractor 

progress. We are requesting an amendment to the construction management services 

work order to account for this additional time.  

For action: Consideration and possible action to authorize Baxter & Woodman Work 

Order 22-010 Amendment No. 1 for an increase of $25,500 for a new total cost of 

$139,600.  

Phase II (GST, MCC Building, Generator, Detention, Site) 

Contractor: R & B Group, Inc. 

Contract Time / Completion Date:  480 calendar days / November 9, 2024  

 600 calendar days / March 9, 2023 (generator)  

Contract Amount: $4,326,395.00 

The pre-construction conference was held on July 17, 2023.The contractor is underway 

with submittals.  We present a revised Work Order No. 23-004 with a reduced scope at 

the request of City Staff.  

For action: Consideration and possible action to authorize Work Order 23-004 for 

construction management services for Water Plant No. 3 Phase II for a cost of 

$88,154. 

C. FM 1488 Force Main Construction and Water Line Relocation 

D. L. Glover, Inc. has completed addressing the deficiency list items. We are underway 

with reviewing Pay Estimate No. 12 and Final. We anticipate presenting the Certificate of 

Completion and the Certificate of Acceptance at the September council meeting.  

 

 



 

CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
ENGINEERING REPORT 
AUGUST 8, 2023 
PAGE 5 OF 8 

 

D. Nichols Sawmill WWTP Expansion  

Allco, LLC is approximately 98% complete with the project. Three SCADA startups have 

been held with the project integrator, BLTI. Deficiency lists have been provided and the 

majority of items on the list have not been addressed. We continue to push the general 

contractor and the integrator to get this project completed.  

We evaluated Plant No. 2 (South Plant) and have determined the needed repairs. Allco 

has provided a proposal for the repairs and coating. The proposal has been forwarded to 

City Staff. Work will take 45-75 days, weather permitting.  

Baxter & Woodman, Inc. put together a level of service to complete the construction 

management portion of this project based on reports from a different engineer, without 

any plans or contract documents. It was reported that the contract was close to 

substantially complete. During our construction management, we’ve processed 10 pay 

estimates, 4 change orders, and added 200 additional days to the contract, which 

indicates the amount of work that actually remained on the project. Additionally, we worked 

with the contractor to add the Nichols Sawmill Sewer Interceptor Replacement Phases I 

and II manhole sealing to the project to reduce flows at the wastewater treatment plant 

during heavy rains.  

For action: Consideration and possible action to authorize Baxter & Woodman Work 

Order 22-006 Amendment No. 2 for an increase of $36,847 for a new total cost of 

$77,347. 

4. FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) PROJECTS  

A. Future Water Plant Sites  

Water Plant No. 4 (Magnolia East Water Plant, Magnolia East Municipal Utility District) 

The plans were provided to us, and plan review letters were sent to the City and the design 

engineer, LJA Engineering. Escrow has been released, and the plans have been sent for 

agency review. The plans are undergoing revision.  

B. Future Wastewater Treatment Plant  

There is no additional information this reporting period.  

C. WWTP Expansion to 2.00 MGD (TWDB State Revolving Funds) 

The application was for a $10,350,000 loan. TWDB has indicated they will only forgive up 

to $1,000,000 of the loan. It is anticipated the transaction will close in November. City Staff 

is coordinating with TWDB for further explanation as why only $1,000,000 will be forgiven, 

when 70% forgiveness was advertised.  

At this point in time, connection projections indicate design needs to begin on the WWTP 

Expansion to 2.0 MGD in order to meet future demands. Assuming no delays, the shortest 

timeframe from authorization to construction completion is three (3) years.  



 

CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
ENGINEERING REPORT 
AUGUST 8, 2023 
PAGE 6 OF 8 

 

5. EVALUATION OF EXISTING 0.30 MGD PLANT (TREATMENT UNIT 1; NORTH 
PLANT) 

We are finalizing the Treatment Unit No. 1 evaluation report. It will be provided to City Staff 

for review this month.   

The flows at the WWTP expansion are nearing permit capacity of the new plant. Treatment 

Unit 2 will be rehabilitated and put back online as part of the WWTP Expansion to 1.30 

MGD project.  

6. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE PROJECTS 

A. Emergency Preparedness Plan (EPP) and Critical Load Coordination  

The TCEQ approved the EPP on March 30, 2023. We have distributed the EPP as 

required, and this item will be removed from the next engineering report.  

B. Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) Initiative  

SSO Initiative Plan 

The report was submitted to the TCEQ on January 31, 2022. In June, the TCEQ indicated 

they expect to schedule a call soon to discuss any potential revisions.  

7. PLANNING PROJECTS  

A. Master Thoroughfare Plan 

The second open house was held on May 25, 2023. Baxter & Woodman and the new City 

of Magnolia City Engineer are attending an in-person meeting with Montgomery County 

Precinct 2 Commissioner Charlie Riley July 13. The intention is to introduce the City 

Engineer, share the comments received from the public for the duration of the project, to 

present the recommendations proposed in the draft report, and discuss funding 

partnerships.  The draft report is 95% complete and will be distributed to City Staff for 

review the first week of August.  

B. City Limits, ETJ, and Zoning Map 

The updated city limits and extraterritorial jurisdiction layers have been provided to the 

City of Magnolia with the references to the fully executed annexation ordinances, and 

these layers are in the process of being added to the ArcGIS Online maps.  The proposed 

zoning layer changes, as drafted in Chapter 2 Zoning and Land Uses of the Unified 

Development Code, have been drawn and are awaiting approval from the Planning and 

Zoning Commission and City Council in the upcoming fall workshop. Once approved, they 

can be added to the online map.  

Currently, the City’s CCN does not cover the entire City boundary. The City should 

consider updating CCN to cover the City limits.  

 



 

CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
ENGINEERING REPORT 
AUGUST 8, 2023 
PAGE 7 OF 8 

 

C. Unified Development Code (UDC) 

The Unified Development Code taskforce was sent the zoning map for review April 3, 

2023, since this map is part of the process to update the Unified Development Code. The 

taskforce meetings are anticipated for completion by the end of July, as Chapters 10-14 

are proposed for review at the final meeting. The final markups of Chapters 1- 9 have been 

reviewed and shared with the taskforce and City Engineer via a OneDrive link.  Once the 

taskforce and City Engineer finalize their comments in August, the report and zoning map 

are anticipated for a workshop this fall with the Planning and Zoning Commission and City 

Council meeting. If the zoning map and code are approved, they are effective immediately 

and will need to be incorporated into the City’s online software by Staff. The draft report is 

95% complete and will be provided to City Staff for review the first week of August.  

8. FUNDING FOR PROJECTS  

A. TWDB State Revolving Funds (SRF) for 0.75 MGD Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Expansion  

This item is reported on under Item 4.C. WWTP Expansion to 2.00 MGD.  

B. American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) Funding  

B&W provided project costs and descriptions to GrantWorks, Inc. for the Elm Street Water 

Plant 212,000-Gallon GST rehabilitation and 100,000-Gallon EST rehabilitation and the 

Kelly Road Water Plant 200,000-Gallon GST rehabilitation. It is recommended to wait until 

Water Plant No. 3 (Guillemont) Phase II comes online as well as the Water Plant No. 2 

(Kelly Road) new GST is constructed before taking GSTs and ESTs offline for these 

rehabilitations. Therefore, the projects are tentatively scheduled for construction 

commencing January 2025. ARPA funds must be spent by December 31, 2026.   

C. Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA)  

WIFIA funding is administered through the EPA. It accelerates national and regional water 

and wastewater infrastructure through long-term, low-cost supplemental loans for credit 

assistance.  

D. Water Plants 

B&W was asked to reach out to GrantWorks, Inc. to determine funding options for future 

water plants. GrantWorks, Inc. provided two options through the Texas Water 

Development Board (TWBD): the Rural Water Assistance Fund (RAWF) and the Drinking 

Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF). Information has been forwarded to City Staff.  

9. DEVELOPMENT AND PLAN REVIEWS 

A. Connection Allocation 

City Staff is notifying developers when connections become available again. This item will 

be removed from the next engineering report.  



 

CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
ENGINEERING REPORT 
AUGUST 8, 2023 
PAGE 8 OF 8 

 

B. Current and Proposed Development 

Attached is a spreadsheet of the status of plan reviews completed and in progress.  

C. Development Acceptance 

The development acceptance tracking spreadsheet is attached. We are underway with a 

road log.   

10. GENERAL ITEMS  

• There have been significant additions to the GIS system this reporting period:  

o Mill Creek: Storm sewer has been added, completing the current Mill Creek 

utilities.  

o Escondido: Water valves, fire hydrants, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer has been 

added, completing the current Escondido utilities.  

o Glen Oaks and Grand Oaks: Water, sanitary, and drainage have been added, 

completing the Grand Oaks MUD utilities.   

o Audubon: We have received plans for Audubon Creekside North Sections 1 and 4 

and Audubon Creekside South Sections 1 and 4.  

o Timber Hollow: Water and sanitary have been added. 

o City Limits: City limits and ETJ have been updated.    

o The linework and appurtenances for the majority of the utilities are in. We are 

underway with adding attributes for all this work (installation year, pipe size, pipe 

material, etc.) 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________           

Michael A. Kurzy, P.E.  

Executive Vice President  

Baxter & Woodman, Inc. 
TBPELS Registration No. F-21783 

Attachments 

for



CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
KELLY ROAD WATER PLANT GST AND HPT ADDITION 

WORK ORDER 23-005 

 
Engineer’s Project No. 2325624.60 

 
Project Description:   
 
This project consists of the construction of a 189,000-gallon glass-lined ground storage tank, 15,000-gallon 
hydropneumatic tank, fencing, detention pond and drainage system, electrical, and instrumentation. 
 
 
Engineering Services:  
  
Baxter & Woodman, Inc., will provide Construction Management and Field Observation for and during the 
construction of the Kelly Road Water Plant GST and HPT Addition. A detailed scope of services for this 
project is listed in Attachment A of this Work Order.  
 

Compensation:   
 
Compensation for the services to be provided under this Work Order will be in accordance with the Master 
Engineering Services Agreement dated September 14, 2021. The Owner shall pay Engineer for the services 
performed or furnished under Attachment A, based upon the Engineer’s standard hourly billing rates for 
actual work time performed during the Construction Contract Duration of 270 calendar days plus 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses including travel, which in total will not exceed $65,418.00.  
 

Submitted by:  Baxter & Woodman Inc. 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

Title: ___Executive Vice President___________ 

Date:  ___August 1, 2023____ _________________ 

Approved by:  City of Magnolia 

 

By: ____________________________________   

Title:  ____________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________________ 

     

 Additional Comments and Conditions:  All costs for Construction Management and Field Observation 
after the expiration of the construction contract period shall be addressed in accordance with Section 
00800 3.04B. and 3.12D 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Magnolia  
Kelly Rd Water Plant GST and HPT Addition 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-005 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

  
Project Description 

The project involves providing Construction Management and Field Observation during construction 
efforts by the Contractor to obtain Project Completion.  
   
Scope of Services 

A Construction Contract Duration of 270 calendar days was utilized in budgeting the following scope of 
services that details the anticipated tasks necessary to successfully complete this Project: 

 
1. Construction Administration  

a. Review Shop Drawing and Product submittals for general conformance with the design intent and 
provisions of the Contract Documents. Review of up to 40 submittals total, (includes submittals 
and re-submittals, if required) by ENGINEER and shall apply only to the items in the submissions 
and only for the purpose of assessing, if upon installation or incorporation in the Project, they are 
generally consistent with the construction documents. OWNER agrees that the contractor is solely 
responsible for the submissions (regardless of the format in which provided, i.e., hard copy or 
electronic transmission) and for compliance with the Contract Documents. OWNER further agrees 
that the ENGINEER’s review and action in relation to these submissions shall not constitute the 
provision of means, methods, techniques, sequencing, or procedures of construction or extend 
to safety programs of precautions. ENGINEER’s consideration of a component does not constitute 
acceptance of the assembled item.  

b. Prepare contract change orders and or work directives when authorized by the OWNER during 
the 9-month construction contract period. 

c. Research and prepare written response by ENGINEER to request for information from the OWNER 
and Contractor during the 9-month construction contract period. 

d. Construction Manager or other office staff up to five (5) site visits as needed during the 9-month 
construction contract period. 

 
2. Field Observation – Part Time 

a. ENGINEER will provide a Field Project Representative (FPR) at the construction site during the 
270-day construction contract period on a periodic part-time basis from the ENGINEER’s office of 
not more than eight (8) hours per month, not including legal holidays as deemed necessary by the 
OWNER.  Part-Time Field Observation provides that the FPR will make intermittent site visits to 
observe and report on the progress of Contractor’s executed Work during the 270-day 
construction contract period. Part-Time Field Observation does not guarantee the ENGINEER will 
observe or comment on work completed by the contractor at times the FPR is not present on site. 
Such visits and observations by the FPR, if any, are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to 
every aspect of Contractor’s Work in progress beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to 
ENGINEER in this Agreement. 

b. Through standard reasonable means, ENGINEER will become generally familiar with observable 



City of Magnolia  
Kelly Rd Water Plant GST and HPT Addition 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-005 
 

completed work during the 270-day construction contract period. If the ENGINEER observes 
completed work that is inconsistent with the construction documents, that information shall be 
communicated to the contractor and OWNER to address. ENGINEER shall not supervise, direct, 
control, or have charge or authority over any contractor’s work, nor shall the ENGINEER have 
authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures 
of construction selected or used by any contractor, or the safety precautions and programs 
incident thereto, for security or safety at the site, nor for any failure of any contractor to comply 
with laws and regulations applicable to such contractor’s furnishing and performing of its work. 
ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes responsibility for 
any contractor’s failure to furnish and perform the work in accordance with the contract 
documents, which contractor is solely responsible for its errors, omissions, and failure to carry 
out the work. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts of omissions of any contractor, 
subcontractor, supplier, manufacturer or any of their agents, employees or any person (except 
ENGINEER’s own agents, employees, and consultants) at the site or otherwise furnishing or 
performing any work; or for any decision made regarding the contract documents, or any 
application, interpretation, or clarification of the contract documents, other than those made by 
the ENGINEER.  

c. Keep a daily record of the Contractor’s work on those days that the FPR is at the construction site 
with notations on the Contractor’s progress during the 270-day construction contract period.  
 

3. Critical Phase Coatings and Sealant Inspection 
a. Provide, an on-site NACE Certified representative on a periodic part-time basis of not more than 

eight (8) hours per regular weekday, as deemed necessary by the Engineers with consent by 
OWNER, to assist the Contractor with interpretation of the Specifications, inspect, verify, and 
document in general if the Contractor’s work is in conformity with the Final Design Documents, 
and to monitor the Contractor’s progress as related to the Construction Contract date of 
completion. 

b. NACE Certified representative will inspect all surface preparations and coating applications per 
the National Association of Corrosion Engineers (NACE) standards. 
 

4. Substantial Completion of Project - Provide construction observation services when notified by the 
OWNER that the Project is substantially complete.  
 

5. Completion of Project 
a. Provide construction observation services when notified by OWNER that the Project is complete. 

Prepare written punch lists during final completion review and monitor and verify any required 
deficiencies correction. 

 
6. ENGINEER reviewed Construction Contract Documents and consulted with OWNER in preparing this 

Scope of Services and associated fee.  ENGINEER does not guarantee the Contractor will reach 
Contract Completion in the Contract time duration identified in the Construction Contract Proposal 
nor does ENGINEER control Contractor’s Schedule to complete the Contract Work. 



City of Magnolia  
Kelly Rd Water Plant GST and HPT Addition 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-005 
 
 
7. Special Services/Additional Services (to be authorized by separate written agreement) 

 
Construction Management and Observation beyond the Original Contract Completion Date 
Attend construction progress meetings as determined by City Engineer 
Cast In Place Concrete Formwork and Rebar – Inspection  
Concrete Placement - Inspection  
Verification of any Laboratory Testing Coordination 
Hydraulic Testing  
Hydrostatic Testing 
Leakage Testing 
Drainage Channel and Basins Inspection and Approval of foundation soil  
Performance Testing – Starting of Systems Electrical Troubleshooting 
Coordination with CenterPoint 
3D GIS 
Drone Captured Video Recording and Imagery 
 
 
It is generally agreed between the Contracting Parties that the ENGINEER has no control over the 
CONTRACTOR’s Schedule and that the ENGINEER cannot control Electrical Troubleshooting or 
coordination required with CenterPoint as such, the Contracting Parties agree that any documented 
additional work in reference to these items, and any other item listed above in Special Services, will be 
considered for an Amendment to this Work Order. 
 











































CITY OF MAGNOLIA 
WATER PLANT No. 3 Phase 2  

WORK ORDER 23-004 

 
Engineer’s Project No. 211009.62 

 
Project Description:   
 
This project consists of the construction of a 410,000-gallon glass-lined ground storage tank, CMU control 
building, three (3) 1,000-gpm vertical turbine booster pumps, motor control center, chemical disinfection 
system, 800-kW diesel emergency power generator, detention pond and drainage system, electrical, 
instrumentation, and SCADA work. 
 
 
Engineering Services:  
  
Baxter & Woodman, Inc., will provide Construction Management and Field Observation for and during the 
construction of the Water Plant No. 3 Phase 2. A detailed scope of services for this project is listed in 
Attachment A of this Work Order.  
 

Compensation:   
 
Compensation for the services to be provided under this Work Order will be in accordance with the Master 
Engineering Services Agreement dated September 14, 2021. The Owner shall pay Engineer for the services 
performed or furnished under Attachment A, based upon the Engineer’s standard hourly billing rates for 
actual work time performed during the Construction Contract Duration of 600 calendar days plus 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses including travel, which in total will not exceed $88,154.00 
without additional authorization.  
 

Submitted by:  Baxter & Woodman Inc. 

 

By: _____________________________________________ 

Title: ___Executive Vice President___________ 

Date:  ___July 1, 2023____ _________________ 

Approved by:  City of Magnolia 

 

By: ____________________________________   

Title:  ____________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________________ 

     

 Additional Comments and Conditions:  All costs for Construction Management and Field Observation 
after the expiration of the construction contract period shall be addressed in accordance with Section 
00800 3.04B. 

 

 

 

 



City of Magnolia  
Water Plant No. 3 Phase 2 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-004 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

  
Project Description 

The project involves providing Construction Management and Field Observation during construction 

efforts by the Contractor to obtain Project Completion.  

   
Scope of Services 

A Construction Contract Duration of 600 calendar days was utilized in budgeting the following scope of 

services that details the anticipated tasks necessary to successfully complete this Project: 

 

1. Act as the OWNER’s representative with duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority as 

assigned in the construction contract documents. 

 

2. Construction Administration  

a. Review Shop Drawing and Product submittals for general conformance with the design intent and 

provisions of the Contract Documents. Review of up to 75 submittals total, (includes submittals 

and re-submittals, if required) by ENGINEER and shall apply only to the items in the submissions 

and only for the purpose of assessing, if upon installation or incorporation in the Project, they are 

generally consistent with the construction documents. OWNER agrees that the contractor is solely 

responsible for the submissions (regardless of the format in which provided, i.e., hard copy or 

electronic transmission) and for compliance with the Contract Documents. OWNER further agrees 

that the ENGINEER’s review and action in relation to these submissions shall not constitute the 

provision of means, methods, techniques, sequencing, or procedures of construction or extend 

to safety programs of precautions. ENGINEER’s consideration of a component does not constitute 

acceptance of the assembled item.  

b. Prepare construction contract change orders and or work directives when authorized by the 

OWNER during the 20-month construction contract period. 

c. Research and prepare written response by ENGINEER to request for information from the OWNER 

and Contractor during the 20-month construction contract period. 

d. Construction Manager or other office staff up to five (5) site visits as needed during the 20-month 

construction contract period. 

 

3. Field Observation – Part Time 

a. ENGINEER will provide a Field Project Representative (FPR) at the construction site during the 

600-day construction contract period on a periodic part-time basis from the ENGINEER’s office of 

not more than eight (8) hours per month, not including legal holidays as deemed necessary by the 

OWNER.  Part-Time Field Observation provides that the FPR will make intermittent site visits to 

observe and report on the progress of Contractor’s executed Work during the 600-day 

construction contract period. Part-Time Field Observation does not guarantee the ENGINEER will 

observe or comment on work completed by the contractor at times the FPR is not present on site. 

Such visits and observations by the FPR, if any, are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to 



City of Magnolia  
Water Plant No. 3 Phase 2 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-004 
 

every aspect of Contractor’s Work in progress beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to 

ENGINEER in this Agreement. 

b. Through standard reasonable means, ENGINEER will become generally familiar with observable 

completed work during the 600-day construction contract period. If the ENGINEER observes 

completed work that is inconsistent with the construction documents, that information shall be 

communicated to the contractor and OWNER to address. ENGINEER shall not supervise, direct, 

control, or have charge or authority over any contractor’s work, nor shall the ENGINEER have 

authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures 

of construction selected or used by any contractor, or the safety precautions and programs 

incident thereto, for security or safety at the site, nor for any failure of any contractor to comply 

with laws and regulations applicable to such contractor’s furnishing and performing of its work. 

ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes responsibility for 

any contractor’s failure to furnish and perform the work in accordance with the contract 

documents, which contractor is solely responsible for its errors, omissions, and failure to carry 

out the work. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts of omissions of any contractor, 

subcontractor, supplier, manufacturer or any of their agents, employees or any person (except 

ENGINEER’s own agents, employees, and consultants) at the site or otherwise furnishing or 

performing any work; or for any decision made regarding the contract documents, or any 

application, interpretation, or clarification of the contract documents, other than those made by 

the ENGINEER.  

c. Keep a daily record of the Contractor’s work on those days that the FPR is at the construction site 

with notations on the Contractor’s progress during the 600-day construction contract period.  

d. Baxter & Woodman to provide an FPR Daily Report template that will be used by OWNER when 

performing Field Observation documenting a daily record of the Contractor’s work on the days 

that the OWNER is providing Field Observation.  

 

4. Critical Phase Coatings and Sealant Inspection 

a. Provide, an on-site NACE Certified representative on a periodic part-time basis of not more than 

eight (8) hours per regular weekday, as deemed necessary by the Engineers with consent by 

OWNER, to assist the Contractor with interpretation of the Specifications, inspect, verify, and 

document in general if the Contractor’s work is in conformity with the Final Design Documents, 

and to monitor the Contractor’s progress as related to the Construction Contract date of 

completion. 

b. NACE Certified representative will inspect all surface preparations and coating applications per 

the National Association of Corrosion Engineers (NACE) standards. 

 

5. Substantial Completion of Project - Provide construction observation services when notified by the 

OWNER that the Project is substantially complete.  

 

6. Completion of Project 

a. Provide construction observation services when notified by OWNER that the Project is complete. 

Prepare written punch lists during final completion review and monitor and verify any required 



City of Magnolia  
Water Plant No. 3 Phase 2 
Construction Management & Field Observation Services  
Work Order 23-004 
 

deficiencies correction. 

 

7. ENGINEER reviewed Construction Contract Documents and consulted with OWNER in preparing this 

Scope of Services and associated fee.  ENGINEER does not guarantee the Contractor will reach 

Contract Completion in the Contract time duration identified in the Construction Contract Proposal 

nor does ENGINEER control Contractor’s Schedule to complete the Contract Work. 

 

8. Special Services/Additional Services (to be authorized by separate written agreement) 

 

Construction Management and Observation beyond the Original Contract Completion Date 

Attend construction progress meetings as determined by City Engineer 

Cast In Place Concrete Formwork and Rebar – Inspection  

Concrete Placement - Inspection  

Verification of any Laboratory Testing Coordination 

Hydraulic Testing  

Hydrostatic Testing 

Leakage Testing 

Drainage Channel and Basins Inspection and Approval of foundation soil  

Performance Testing – Starting of Systems Electrical Troubleshooting 

Coordination with CenterPoint 

3D GIS 

Drone Captured Video Recording and Imagery 

 

 

It is generally agreed between the Contracting Parties that the ENGINEER has no control over the 

CONTRACTOR’s Schedule and that the ENGINEER cannot control Electrical Troubleshooting or 

coordination required with CenterPoint as such, the Contracting Parties agree that any documented 

additional work in reference to these items, and any other item listed above in Special Services, will be 

considered for an Amendment to this Work Order. 

 



 
CITY OF MAGNOLIA 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION  
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES 

WORK ORDER AMENDMENT NO. 2  
 
 

Engineer’s Project No. 220961.60 
 
Purpose of Amendment:   
 
This amendment to the original Work Order dated June 14, 2022, provides for additional scope of services 
and compensation that are being added to the Project. 
 
 
Amended Engineering Services:   
 
The scope of service is amended to include special services/additional services and extended Construction 
Management and Inspection Services for Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion. 
 
A detailed scope of special services/additional services for this project is listed   The amended scope of 
services is set forth in Attachment A. 
 
 
Amended Compensation:   
 
The Engineer’s fee for the Project shall be amended as follows: 
 

Current Not-to-Exceed Work Order Limit: $ 40,500 
 
Net increase/decrease of this Amendment $ 36,847 

 
Amended Not-to-Exceed Limit: $ 77,347 

 
 

 
Submitted by:  Baxter & Woodman, Inc. 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
               Michael A. Kurzy, PE 
Title: Executive Vice President  
 
Date:  _August 1, 2023_______________________ 
 

 
Approved by:  City of Magnolia 
 
By: __________________________________
   
                 
Title:      Mayor 
  
Date: __________________________________ 

     
  
Additional Comments and Conditions:  All other provisions of the Work Order shall remain in full force 
and effect. 
 
 

 
 



City of Magnolia  Attachment A 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion  Page 2 of 2 
Construction Management & Inspection Services 
Special Services/Additional Services  
Work Order Amendment No. 2 
 
 
Project Description 
Special Services/Additional Services performing required Instrumentation and Controls Troubleshooting, 
Electrical Troubleshooting to perform SCADA Start-Up of Treatment Unit 3 and extended Construction 
Administration and Field Observation required for Rehabilitation of Treatment Unit No. 2 to remain in 
compliance with TCEQ and reach final completion. This work will require NACE certified site inspection for 
the coating and rehabilitation work. Owner added Scope and B & W coordinated with Owner and 
Contractor to seal Manholes that were installed during Nichols Sawmill Phases 1 and 2.  
    
Scope of Services 
The following scope of services details the anticipated tasks necessary to successfully complete this 
Project: 
 

1. Providing Construction Management Services including 
a. Coordinate with Owner and Contractor to schedule CenterPoint 

b. Coordinate with Owner and Contractor to schedule AT&T services 

c. Review and response for RFIs  
d. Pay Estimate processing 
e. Change Order processing 
f. Final inspection 
g. Construction Manager or other office staff visit site as needed 

 

2. Providing Field Project Representation 
a. On site Observations  
b. Witness testing  
c. Coordination Equipment Start-Up, testing, and training  
d. Daily Reports when on site 
e. Observed and documented non-conforming work and monitored contractors 

corrective actions 
 

3. Critical Phase Coatings and Sealant Inspection 

a. Provide, an on-site NACE Certified representative on a periodic part-time basis of 

not more than eight (8) hours per regular weekday, as deemed necessary by the 

Engineers, to assist the Contractor with interpretation of the Specifications, 

inspect, verify, and document in general if the Contractor’s work is in conformity 

with the Final Design Documents, and to monitor the Contractor’s progress as 

related to the Construction Contract date of completion. 

b. NACE Certified representative will inspect all surface preparations and coating 
applications per the National Association of Corrosion Engineers (NACE) 
standards.  

 
 



PLAN REVIEW PROJECT STATUS 
8/1/2023

B&W No.

E
n

g
in

ee
r

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 P
la

t R
e

ce
iv

e
d

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 P
la

t A
p

p
ro

ve
d

F
in

a
l P

la
t R

e
ce

iv
e

d

F
in

a
l P

la
t A

p
p

ro
ve

d

P
la

n
s 

R
e

ce
iv

e
d

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
tiv

e
ly

 C
o

m
p

le
te

P
la

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

 L
e

tte
r 

S
e

n
t

N
o

 O
b

je
ct

io
n

 L
e

tte
r 

S
e

n
t

P
la

n
s 

R
e

ce
iv

e
d

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
tiv

e
ly

 C
o

m
p

le
te

P
la

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

 L
e

tte
r 

S
e

n
t

N
o

 O
b

je
ct

io
n

 L
e

tte
r 

S
e

n
t

P
la

n
s 

R
e

ce
iv

e
d

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
tiv

e
ly

 C
o

m
p

le
te

P
la

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

 L
e

tte
r 

S
e

n
t

N
o

 O
b

je
ct

io
n

 L
e

tte
r 

S
e

n
t

P
la

n
s 

R
e

ce
iv

e
d

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
tiv

e
ly

 C
o

m
p

le
te

P
la

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

 L
e

tte
r 

S
e

n
t

N
o

 O
b

je
ct

io
n

 L
e

tte
r 

S
e

n
t

P
la

n
s 

R
e

ce
iv

e
d

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
tiv

e
ly

 C
o

m
p

le
te

P
la

n
 R

e
vi

e
w

 L
e

tte
r 

S
e

n
t

N
o

 O
b

je
ct

io
n

 L
e

tte
r 

S
e

n
t

P
la

n
s 

R
e

ce
iv

e
d

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
tiv

e
ly

 C
o

m
p

le
te

211709.80-001 MAGNC Ranco Grande Restaurant WSDP REG No No 08/12/21 Yes 08/17/21 01/13/22 Yes 01/27/22
220756.80-001 MAGNC Magnolia Village South Final Plat BJ Yes Yes 04/05/22 Yes 04/15/22 05/12/22 Yes 05/18/22
220758.80-001 MAGNC Detention Facilities to Serve Magonlia Ridge Forest Sec 17, 18 & 19 MN Yes Yes 04/06/22 Yes 04/18/22 05/05/22 Yes 05/12/22
220780.80-001 MAGNC C-Store & Gas Station ( missing site plan ) CT No 04/12/22 Yes 04/26/22 08/16/22 Yes 08/29/22
220837.80-001 MAGNC Carrilos Magnolia Reserve Preliminary Plat (missing site plan) BJ No 04/19/22 Yes 05/02/22
220876.80-001 MAGNC Magnolia Ridge Forest Section 18 Final Plat CRE Yes Yes 04/25/22 Yes 05/04/22 06/27/22 Yes 07/14/22
220877.80-001 MAGNC Magnolia Ridge Forest Section 19 Final Plat CRE Yes Yes 04/25/22 Yes 05/04/22 06/27/22 Yes 07/14/22
221258.80-001 MAGNC Mill Creek Estates Phase IV Mass Grading and Detention TDH No No 06/09/22 Yes 06/17/22
221273.80-001 MAGNC Escondido Section 5 WSDP TDH Yes No 06/10/22 Yes 06/22/22 04/18/23
221390.80-001 MAGNC Escondido Sec 5 Final Plat CRE Yes Yes Yes 06/27/22 Yes 07/08/22 07/13/22 Yes 07/19/22 06/28/23 Yes 7/14/2023
221399.80-001 MAGNC Mill Creek Estates Sec 8 WSDP TDH Yes Yes No 06/27/22 Yes 07/06/22
221489.80-001 MAGNC Escondido Sec 7 Final Plat CRE Yes Yes Yes 06/28/22 Yes 07/13/22
221563.80-001 MAGNC Mill Creek Estates Sec 9 WSDP TDH Yes Yes No 07/22/22 Yes 08/02/22
221633.80-001 MAGNC TxDOT Driveway Permit Deceleration Lane and 16-inch Water Line REG N/A N/A N/A N/A 07/25/22 Yes 08/02/22
221646.80.001 MAGNC Escondido Section 9 Final Plat CRE Yes Yes No 08/03/22 Yes 08/04/22
221678.80-001 MAGNC Magnolia Ridge Forest Sec 18 WSDP TDH Yes Yes 08/09/22 Yes 08/23/22 07/31/23
221716.80-001 MAGNC Mill Creek Estates Sec 10 WSDP TDH Yes Yes 08/11/22 Yes 08/24/22
221751.80-001 MAGNC 29 Acres Located at NE Corner of FM1774 and FM1486 WSDP CP No 08/16/22 Yes 08/29/22
222157.80-001 MAGNC Mister Car Wash (Site Plan Only) TDH Yes Yes Yes Yes 10/06/22 Yes 10/21/22
222267.80-001 MAGNC Magnolia Ridge Forest Section 20 - DIA SMA N/A N/A N/A N/A 10/25/22 Yes 11/29/22
222287.80-001 MAGNC Magnolia Place Section 2 (WSDP) TDH Yes Yes 10/27/22 Yes 11/09/22 01/09/23 Yes 01/12/23
222675.80-001 MAGNC Ascend at Magnolia Place - WSDP TC Yes No 12/22/22 Yes 1/12/2023
230353.80-001 MAGNC Windmill Estates Replat AMJ Trading Replat CE No 01/27/23 No 2/9/2023
230344.80-001 MAGNC Water Plant #4 Prelim Plat CE No 02/06/23 Yes 2/9/2023
230483-80.001 MAGNC Carillo Magnolia Reserve Final Plat CE Yes 02/14/23 No 2/23/2023
230476-80.001 MAGNC Carillo Magnolia Reserve Prelim Plat CE Yes 02/14/23 No 2/23/2023
230477-80.001 MAGNC Carillo Magnolia Reserve Site Plan CE Yes 02/14/23 No 2/23/2023
230474.80-001 MAGNC Legacy Tubular (Site Work) TC/CE No 11/17/23 No 11/17/2023 01/26/23 No 02/23/23
230472.80-001 MAGNC Nichols Sawmill (Paving) TC No 02/02/23 Yes 2/23/2023
230477.80-001 MAGNC Escondido Lift Station No. 2 TC Yes 01/31/23 Yes 2/28/2023 7/25/2023 Yes 7/26/2023
230514.00-001 MAGNC Escondido Lift Station No. 3 TC Yes 02/13/23 Yes 2/28/2023 6/14/2023 7/6/2023
230659.80-001 MAGNC Spur 149 Improvements to Serve Magnolia Village South TC Yes 02/17/23 Yes 3/8/2023
230546.00-001 MAGNC Magnolia Village South (WSDP) TC Yes 02/22/23 Yes 3/8/2023

In Progress MAGNC Magnolia Village Development Agreement Admin/ Rezoning CE 02/23/23 N/A 04/13/23 04/17/23 N/A In Progress
2325082.00-001 MAGNC San Angelo and Corpus Plan Review TC No 03/22/23 No 04/04/23
2325120.00-001 MAGNC Magnolia Ridge Forest Sec. 17 - LOMR-F TC 03/22/23 Yes 04/04/23
2325152.00-001 MAGNC Wells Fargo (WSDP) TC Yes 04/11/23 Yes 04/18/23
2325255.00-001 MAGNC Magnolia Village South Access Drive Prvt Improvements JR Yes 04/26/23 Yes 05/10/23
2325523.00-001 MAGNC Sandra Dee Ln Sec.1 Preliminary Plat KB Yes 06/01/23 Yes 06/09/23 06/28/23 Yes 07/14/23
2325524.00-001 MAGNC Girasol St and Reserve Preliminary Plat KB Yes 06/01/23 Yes 06/09/23 06/28/23 Yes 07/14/23
2322525.00-001 MAGNC Magnolia Village Phase #2 Site Plan Review KB No 06/07/23 No
2325572.00-001 MAGNC Magnolia Retail Center TC No 06/07/23 Yes 06/20/23 07/12/23 Yes 07/18/23

1. All plan review requests go directly to REG from MAK. Send to JCN when REG is out of office.

2. All agency-approved plan sets or plats are to be sent to the Production Manager to save in the appropriate spot on the server. 

3. CenterPoint maps expires 6 months after the request.

4. AT&T maps expire 12 months after the request. 

Client & Project Name

Plat
Plans

Submittal No. 1
Plans

Submittal No. 2
Plans

Submittal No. 3
Plans

Submittal No. 4
Plans

Submittal No. 5
Plans

Submittal No. 5



Updated: 7/24/2023

Subdivision: Heritage Green

Section: 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6
Developer: L J A L J A United LJA LJA LJA LJA LJA LJA
Inspection Submittal
City of Magnolia and Engineer's letters of 
Approval

  

Manhole Vacuum Test Reports   Incomplete
Bacteriological Test Reports    Completed 

Water Line Test Reports   Not Applicable N/A
Sanitary Line Pressure Reports   In progress
Mandrel Test Reports  
Developer Certification Letter to Magnolia 
City

 

Engineer's Certificate of Completion (WSD)  

Punch List

Punch List Completed  
Acceptance Submittal

Engineers Completion Certificates for 
W,S,&D

 

Maintenance Bonds for W,S,&D  
Affidavit of Bill Paid for W,S,&D  
Consent Surety for W,S,&D  
Testing Lab Affidavit for W,S,&D  
Final Pay Estimate - W,S,&D  
Engineers Completion Certificates for 
Paving  

Maintenance Bonds for Paving  
Affidavit of Bills Paid for Paving  
Consent Surety for Paving  
Testing Lab Affidavit for Paving  
Final Pay Estimate - Paving  
As-Built Drawings   

Final Plat       
Document

Water Line

Pressure tests   

Bacteriological tests   

Sanitary Lines

pressure tests   

vacuum tests   

mandrel tests   

Force Mains

Pressure test   N/A

Compaction reports   N/A

Paving

Concrete compression/flex test reports  
Core reports  
Easement not recorded by plat  
As-Builts

As-built drawings, PDF and GIS or CAD    
As-built survey (sanitary lines, storm sewer 
lines, detention)  
Engineer's signed and sealed certification of 
completion  

Acceptance Letter

Timber Hollow Escondido

Key:


	CC Agenda Packet 8.8.23.pdf
	CC Agenda 8.8.23.pdf
	ITEM 3
	ITEM 5a
	ITEM 5b
	ITEM 5c
	ITEM 5d
	ITEM 6
	ITEM 7
	ITEM 8
	ITEM 10
	ITEM 12
	ITEM 13
	ITEM 14
	ITEM 15
	ITEM 16
	ITEM 19
	ITEM 20
	ITEM 21
	ITEM 22
	ITEM 23
	ITEM 24
	REPORTS
	PD Report July
	Court Report
	Code Compliance Report
	City Administrator Report
	Engineer Report





